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To the Honorable Mayor Mark R. Johnson, Members of the Covington City Council and Citizens 
of the City of Covington: 

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish, within six (6) months ofthe 
close of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. ln March 2020, the 
World Health Organization made the assessment that the outbreak of a novel coronavirus 
(COVID-19) can be characterized as a pandemic. As a result, uncertainties have arisen that may 
have a significant negative impact on the operating activities and results of the City. Pursuant to 
that requirement, we hereby issue the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of 
Covington, Louisiana (the City) for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

This report consists of the administrations representations concerning the finances of the City. 
Administration, hereinafter referred to as Management, assumes full responsibility for the 
completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report based upon a 
comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established to protect the governments 
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation 
of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should 
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. As Management, 
we assert that to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable 
in all material respects. 

LaPorte, a firm of licensed certified public accountants: has audited the Citys financial statements 
and has issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the City of Covingtons financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2021. The independent auditors report is located at the front ofthe 
financial section of this report. 

Managements Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with 
it. 
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Profile of the Government 

The City was founded by John Wharton Collins, a New Orleans merchant by way of New York, 
on July 4, 1813 as the Town of Wharton. The City was formally incorporated in 181 6 by the state 
legislature and renamed Covington much to the chagrin of John Wharton Collins. The City of 
Covington is located in st. Tammany Parish in southeast Louisiana and encompasses 
approximately 7.98 square miles. Covington is the Parish seat and houses the 22nd Judicial 
District Court, also known as the St. Tammany Parish Courthouse. 

Covington is a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana located in St. Tammany Parish. The 
citizens of Covington approved and adopted the Home-Rule Charter on November 7, 1978. The 
City operates a Mayor-Council form of government. Both the Mayor and the Council are elected 
by the voters to serve a four-year term with a limit of two (2) consecutive terms. The Mayor is the 
head of the executive branch. The Mayors responsibilities include, but are not limited to, 
administering policies that facilitate the adherence to ordinances created by the Council, 
effectuating the smooth daily operations of government, and appointing the department heads. 
The Council is the legislative branch ofthe City. The Councils responsibilities include, but are not 
limited to, passing ordinances and resolutions, as well as adopting an annual budget. The Council 
consists of seven (7) members - five (5) of which are district members and two (2) of which are 
at-large members. 

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, construction and 
maintenance of roads, bridges, drainage and other infrastructure, water, and sewer services, 
permitting and inspections, code enforcement, planning and zoning, recreational activities, 
cultural events and other general governmental functions and administrative services. The 
financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and has no component units. A more 
detailed discussion of the reporting entity is included in Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

The annual budget, both operating and capital, serves as the foundation for the Citys financial 
planning and control. All departments ofthe City are required to submit requests for appropriation 
to the Mayor on or before mid-July of each year. The Mayor uses these requests as a starting 
point for developing the Proposed Budget. The Mayor also prepares a five (5) year Capital 
lmprovement Plan. The Mayor then presents the Proposed Budget and Capital lmprovement Plan 
to the City Council at the first council meeting in September. The Council is required to hold public 
hearings and publish the Proposed Budget in the officialjournal at least ten (10) days prior to the 
hearing. 

Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. The transfer of 
appropriations between departments requires the approval of the governing City Council. 

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual government fund for 
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund, this comparison 
is presented on pages 88-93. For the A3 Sales tax fund, this comparison is presented on page 
94. 



Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

Local Economy 

Although Covington has a residential population of approximately 1 1 ,564 people, the population 
swells to approximately 20,000 during the day due to the Courthouse and St. Tammany Parish 
Hospital. ln 2021, 2020, and 2019, the City experienced a sales tax growth rate of 16.6%, 6.O%, 
and 3.6%, respectively. The City anticipates an increase in sales tax during 2022. 

Long-Term Financial Planning 

The five (5) year Capital lmprovement Plan is continuing to be monitored and updated 
accordingly. With the assistance ofthe new Geographical lnformation Systems (GIS) Specialist, 
the City Engineer is working to complete the process of developing an lnfrastructure Master Plan 
which is intended to guide us for the next twenty (20) years. 

Major lnitiatives 

Over the next year we will be concentrating on the following major projects: 

• Wastewater Treatment Plant lmprovements 
• Wastewater Collection System Repair Program 
• Sewer line and lift station improvements and repairs 
• Waterline Extensions and Upgrades to provide increased water supply and the addition of 

fire hydrants where needed for enhanced fire protection in our established neighborhoods 
• lmprovements to our municipal water wells 
• Roadway Overlay and lmprovement Program 
• Sidewalk Construction and Repair Program 
• Drainage and street repairs in River Forest Subdivision, including Willow Drive Phase 2 
• Investment in conversion to new Water Meter System 

Among the Capital lnfrastructure Projects funded in the 2021 Budgetwhich are in varying stages 
of design, engineering, permitting, and/or construction are the following which are scheduled for 
completion in 2022: 

Downtown Sidewalks 
• Beth Dr. Waterline Replacement 
• 2020 Guardrail Replacement 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Generator Replacement 
• River Forest Drainage lmprovements 
• Downtown Asphalt Patching 
• Concrete Panel Replacement 
• Downtown Striping 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
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lndependent Auditors Report 

Honorable Mark R. Johnson, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 
City of Covington, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City 
of Covington, Louisiana, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of 
December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereoffor the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States ofAmerica. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Correction of Error 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, unearned revenue of the business-type 
activities was overstated by $448,221 requiring an adjustment to beginning net position. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

LOUISIANA • TEXAS 

An Independent1y Owned Member, RSM US Alliance 
RSM US Alliance mernber Srms are separate and independent businesses and legal entities 
that are responsible fortheir own acts and omissions, and each is separate and independent 
from RSM US LLR RSM US LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM lnternational, o global network of 
independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Members ofRSM US Alliance have access to RSM 
lnternational resources through RSM US LLP but are not mewber firms of RSM lnternational. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Citys 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors 
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

ln performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and GovernmentAuditing Standards, we: 

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Citys ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

2 



Requ ired Supplementary lnformation 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
managements discussion and analysis, required other postemployment benefits supplementary 
information, schedule of Citys contributions to pension plans, schedule of proportionate share of 
net pension liability, schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, and budgetary 
comparison schedules be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with managements 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary lnformation 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Citys basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedules in the other supplementary 
information section as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedules in the other 
supplementary information section as listed in the table of contents, are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other lnformation 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic 
financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 

ln connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information 
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. lf, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 
misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAuditing Standards 
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 25, 2022, on our consideration of the Citys internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Citys internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Covington, Louisiana 
October 25, 2022 
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ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Covingtons (the City) financial performance provides 
an overview ofthe Citys financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. Please 
review in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal on Page i and the Citys Basic Financial 
Statements, which begin on page 17. 

Reviewing the Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities (on pages 1 7 and 1 9) provide information about the activities of the 
City as a whole and present a long-term view of the Citys finances. 

Fund financial statements start on page 21. For governmental activities, these statements report 
how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
Fund financial statements also report the Citys operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the Citys most significant funds. The remaining 
statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as an agent 
for the benefit of those outside of the government. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

Our analysis ofthe City as a whole begins on page 8. One ofthe most important questions asked 
about the Citys finances is, ls the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the years 
financial activities? The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report 
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this 
question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. As such, all of the 
current years revenues and expenditures are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

These two statements report the Citys net position and changes in them. You can think of the 
Citys net position-the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities 
plus deferred inflows of resources-as one way to measure the Citys financial health or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Citys net position is one indicator of whether 
its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial 
factors, however, such as changes in the Citys property tax base and the condition of the Citys 
roads, to assess the overall financial health of the City. 

ln the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds 
of activities: 

Governmental activities-Most of the Citys basic services are reported here, including the 
police, fire, public works, and recreation and culture departments, and general 
administration. Sales and use taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, and license and 
permit fees finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities-The City charges a fee to customers using the Citys water and 
sewer systems to help it cover all or most of the cost of the services it provides. 



ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the Citys major funds begins on page 1 1. The fund financial statements provide 
detailed information about the most significant funds-not the City as a whole. Some funds are 
required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City establishes 
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to account for it to 
meet legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Citys two kinds 
of funds- governmental and proprietary-use different accounting approaches. 

Governmental Funds - Most of the Citys basic services are reported in governmental 
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left 
at year- end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial 
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide 
a detailed short-term view of the Citys general government operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there 
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 
Citys programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds in reconciliations on page 22 and 24 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these 
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the 
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities. ln fact, the Citys enterprise funds (a component of proprietary 
funds) are the same as the business-type activities reported in the government-wide 
statements but provide more detail and additional information such as cash flows for the 
proprietary funds. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found beginning on page 33. 

Other lnformation 

ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain Required Supplementary lnformation concerning budgetary basis reporting for the 
General Fund, A3 Sales Tax Fund, and State and Federal Grants Fund, as well as other 
information detailed in the table of contents surrounding OPEB and pension liabilities. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 84 to 97 of this report. 

The combining and individual statements of non-major governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the Required Supplementary lnformation. Combining statements can be 
found on pages 99 and 100 ofthis report. 
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ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Financial Highlights 

After this years operations, the Citys ending net position is as follows: the net position of 
governmental activities was $38,564,489 and the net position of business-type activities was 
$28,418,222. 

The current years expense total was $20,344,100 as compared to the $28,668,533 
generated in fees and charges, grants, general revenues, and taxes for governmental 
programs (before transfers). ln the previous year, expenditures were $15,916,437 as 
compared to the $20,310,811 generated in tax and other revenues for governmental 
programs (before transfers). 

• For business-type activities, City revenues (before transfers) were $5,542,464. Expenses 
were $5,040,790. 

The annual cost of all City programs was $25,384,890. The previous years cost was 
$22,260,079. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

The Citys combined restated net position from the previous yearwas $58,156,604 as compared 
to $66,982,711 this year. However, net position and expenditures from governmental and 
business-type activities must be reviewed separately. Table 1 focuses on the net position and 
Table 2 focuses on changes in the net position of the Citys governmental and business-type 
activities. 

The City s net position for governmental activities was $38,564,489 this year as compared to 
$29,951 ,287 last year. Unrestricted net position for governmental activities was $5,506,004 this 
year as compared to $(1,993,15O) lastyear. Unrestricted net position are those fundsthatcan be 
used to finance everyday operations without restrictions set by legislation, debt covenants, or 
other legal regulations. 

The net position of the Citys business-type activities was $28,41 8,222 this year as compared to 
the restated balance of $28,205,317 last year. 

By far the largest portion of the Citys net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
infrastructure, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Covington uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the Citys investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Table 1 
Net Position (in thousands) 

Governmental Business-Type 
ctivities ctivities Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

$ 29,950 $ 19,701 $ 7,302 $ 7,197 $ 37,252 $ 26,898 
34,365 34,016 24,579 24,608 58,944 58,624 

64,315 53,717 31,881 31,805 96,196 85,522 

Assets 
Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets, Net 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Loss on Refunding 
Deferred Oufflows - Pension 
Deferred Outflows - Other 

Postemployment Benefit 

Total Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabiiities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred lnflows of Resources 
Unavailable Revenues 
Deferred lnflows - Pension 
Deferred lnflows - Other 

Postemployment Benefit 

Total Deferred lnflows 
of Resources 

68 84 - 
2,357 2,942 213 

3,568 3,132 624 

5.993 6.158 837 

20 20 
4,066 1,129 446 

3,095 558 542 

7181 1.707 988  

- 68 84 
868 2,570 3,810 

147 4,192 3,279 

1.015 6830 7.173 

- 20 20 
40 4,512 1,169 

91 3,637 649 

131 8.169 1.838 

6,627 3,223 755 1,186 7,382 4,409 
17,935 24,994 2,557 3,746 20,492 28,740 

24,562 28,217 3,312 4,932 27,874 33,149 

Net Position 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 31,242 30,292 24,579 24,608 55,821 54,900 
Restricted 1,817 1,652 - - 1,817 1,652 
Unrestricted 5,506 (1,993) 3,839 3,149 9,345 1,156 

Total Net Position $ 38,565 $ 29,951 $ 28,418 $ 27,757 $ 66,983 $ 57,708 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report overall positive net position, both 
for the government as a whole, as well as a for its separate governmental and business-type 
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

City revenues (excluding special items) for the current year were $34,210,997 as compared to 
$25,008,635 in the previous year. The total yearly cost of all programs and services was 
$25,384,890 as compared to $22,260,079 in the previous year. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Table 2 
Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 

Charges for Services $ 2,085 $ 1,70 $ 5,509 $ 4,840 $ 7,594 $ 6,545 
Restricted Operating Grants 4,959 175 - - 4,959 175 
Restricted Capital Grants 747 131 - - 747 131 

General Revenues 
PropertyTaxes 3,289 3,185 - - 3,289 3,185 
Sales Taxes 16,132 13,664 - - 16,132 13,664 
OtherTaxes 769 672 - - 769 672 
lnterest and lnvestment 

lncome 70 75 1 - 71 75 
OtherGeneral Revenues 618 704 33 (140) 651 564 

Total Revenues 28,669 20,311 5,543 4,700 34,212 25,011 

Program Expe nditures 
General Government 3,260 4,220 - - 3,260 4,220 
Public Safety 7,810 7,060 - - 7,810 7,060 
publicWorks 8,421 3,810 - - 8,421 3,810 
Culture and Recreation 771 748 - - 771 748 
lnterest on Long-Term Debt 82 78 - - 82 78 
Water and Sewer - - 4,030 5,351 4,030 5,351 
Other Utilities - - 1,011 992 1,011 992 

Total Expenditures 20,344 15,916 5,041 6,343 25,385 22,259 

Excess (Deficit) before Special 
ltems and Transfers 8,325 4,395 502 (1,643) 8,827 2,752 

Transfers 289 (2,119) (289) 2,116 - (3) 

Change in Net Position 8,614 2,276 213 473 8,827 2,749 

Net Position, Beginning ofYear, Restated 29,951 27,675 28,205 27,284 58,156 54,959 

Net Position, End of Year $ 38,565 $ 29,951 $ 28,418 $ 27,757 $ 66,983 $ 57708 

Governmental Activities 

This years governmental activities revenues were $28,668,533 as compared to $20,310,811 last 
year. Total revenues increased by $8,357,722 or 41 %. This increase is driven by three revenue 
components including approximately $4.9 million revenue receivable as a result of Hurricane lda, 
$747,000 in grant revenue, and $2.5 million increase in sales tax. 

This years governmental activities cost was $20,344,100 as compared to $15,916,437 in the 
previous year. Total expenditures increased by $4,427,663 or 28%. This is primarily due to debris 
removal, clean up, and repair after Hurricane lda. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Business-Type Activities 

This years business-type activities charges for services revenues were $5,508,292 as compared 
to $4,839,825 last year. Charge for services increased by $668,467 or 13.8%. This increase is 
primarily due to growth ofthe community. 

This years expenses were $5,040,790 as compared to $6,343,642 in the previous year. Total 
expenses decreased by $1 ,302,852 or 20.5%. The decrease is largely due to purchase of new 
water meters in 2020. 

Table 3 details the cost of the Citys major programs as well as each programs net cost (total cost 
less revenues generated by the program). The net cost indicates the financial burden that was 
shifted to the Citys taxpayers by each of these programs: 

Table 3 
Governmental Activities (in thousands) 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services 
2021 2020 2021 2020 

Police Department $ 5,041 $ 4,535 $ (4,965) $ (4,268) 
Fire Department 2,769 2,525 (2,769) (2,422) 
Public Works 8,421 3,810 (7,837) (3,692) 
Culture and Recreation 771 748 (382) (677) 

Jl Others 3,342 4,298 3,400 (2,815) 

Total $ 20,344 $ 15,916 $ (12,553) $ (13,874) 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTS FUNDS 

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The focus of the Citys governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the Citys financing requirements. ln particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of governments net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Citys governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $24,317,242, an increase of $6,490,O55 in comparison with the prior year. 

Approximately 40% of the ending fund balance, or $9,747,018, constitutes unassigned fund 
balance, which is available for spending at the Citys discretion. The remainder offund balance is 
as follows: approximately 23% is assigned, 30% is committed, 7% is restricted and O.4% is non-
spendable. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

The fund balance of the general fund ¡ncreased by $4,495,405 ¡n the current year and ¡ncreased 
by $380,584 ¡n the prior year. The increase is primarily increase in sales tax revenue. 

Total revenue in the generalfund increased by $2,411,738 or 15.3%. 

Expenditures in the general fund increased $6,280,861 or 42%, due to Hurricane lda debris 
removal, clean up, and repairs. Expenditures in general government increased by $84,566 or 
2.4%. Public safety expenditures increased by $1,1O1,677 or 17.8%. publicWorks expenditures 
increased by $4,526,404 or 208.8%. Culture and recreation expenditures increased $23,335 or 
3.9% Capital outlay expenditures increased $544,879 or 15%. 

The A3 Sales Tax Fund accounts for the special annexation sales tax. Total revenues increased 
by $448,1 16 or 14.7% due to an increase in sales tax collections for the current year. 

Budgetary Statements 

The City Council revised the 2021 original adopted budgets for the General Fund and the A3 
Sales Tax Fund during the year as revenues and expenditures changed. The original budgets 
were voted and approved on November 10, 2020 and the amended budgets were voted and 
approved on August 3, 2021 

By budgetary policy, revenue estimates are prepared with a conservative bias. Overall, general 
fund revenue in 2021 experienced a positive variance of $1 ,841 ,651 from the amount in the final 
adopted budget. A3 Sales tax fund revenue in 2021 experienced a positive variance of $564,540 
from the amount in the final adopted budget. 

The final budget for general fund expenditures increased $3,529,104 or 21.5% from the original 
budget for 2021. Actual expenditures for the general fund were $3,979,976 more than the original 
adopted budget and $450,782 more than the final adopted budget. The final budget for A3 Sales 
tax fund expenditures increased $36,764 from the original budget for 2021 due to additional 
capital outlay projects. Actual expenditures for the A3 Sales tax fund were $558,378 less than the 
original adopted budget and $595,142 less than the final adopted budget. 

Capital Assets 

Table 4 
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation (in thousands) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

807 $ 807 $ - 
11,968 11,570 1,076 1,076 
3,186 3,215 4,659 4,616 

16,823 16,354 17,178 17,738 
1,581 2070 1,667 1 179 

Total 
2021 2020 

807 $ 807 
13,044 12,646 

7,845 7,831 
34,001 34,092 

Land 
Building and lmprovements 
Equipment 
lnfrastructure 
Construction in Progress 

$ 34,365 $ 34,016 $ 24,579 $ 24,609 $ 58,945 $ 58,625 capital Assets, Net 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

The current years significant capital asset additions included: 

• Governmental Activities: W l 1th  Ave Bridge Replacement, Jefferson Ave Traffic Circle 
Utility, Ox Lot lmprovements, Bogue Falaya Park ADA lmprovement, E. Lock Wood Street 
Drainage lmprovements, 2020 Bridge Load Ratings, CFD Station 1 Bathroom Renovation, 
ADA Playground lmprovements 

• Business-Type Activities: 2019 SSES Program, 2019 Gravity Sewer Repairs, 2019 
Miscellaneous Water Improvements, Lurline Dr Gravity Sewer Repairs, Wastewater 
Treatment Plant lmprovements Phase 1, 2020 Waterline Extension Down 14th,  Mentere 
Dr Sewer Line Extension, Lake Pontchartrain Storm Filtration 

More detailed information about the Citys capital assets is presented in Note 2 to the financial 
statements. 

Debt Management 

At the close of the year, the City had $2,425,000 in outstanding bonds and notes as compared to 
$3,222,000 in the previous year (see Table 5). This decrease in debt of $797,000 is due to 
regularly scheduled principal payment. 

Table 5 
Outstanding Debt (in thousands) 

General Obligation Bonds 
(Backed by the City) 

Revenue bonds and notes 
(Backed by Specific Tax 
and Fee Revenues) 

Capital Lease 

capital Assets, Net 

Governmental 
Activities 

2021 2020 

$ 2,425 $ 2,897 $ 

- 325 
698 586 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2021 2020 

$ 

Total 
2021 2020 

$ 2,425 $ 2,897 

- 325 
698 586 

$ 3,123 $ 3,808 $ - $ - $ 3,123 $ 3,808 

More detailed information about the Citys long-term liabilities is presented in Note 2 to the 
financial statements. 

Economic lssues/Upcoming Yeariy Budgets 

City public officials considered many issues when establishing the upcoming years budget, tax 
rates, and fees. 

ln 2022 we anticipate over 72% of the Citys general fund revenues will be derived from sales 
taxes. We budgeted $15,344,611 in net sales tax collections for 2022, which is an increase of 
17% over 2021 budget. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

From A3 Sales Tax Fund revenue $1,977,850 will be transferred to the General Fund for the 
purpose of maintaining roads, bridges, and drainage in areas where it benefits residents of 
St. Tammany Parish Sales Tax District 3. An additional $1,742,544 of revenue in the A3 Sales 
Tax is dedicated to the construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and drainage projects in 
St. Tammany Parish Sales Tax District 3. 

Ad Valorem Tax is anticipated to generate approximately $2,688,275 in revenue for the General 
Fund. This represents a 4.9% increase over 2021 projected amounts and is based upon an 
assessed valuation of $142,302,320. lt should be noted that property taxes represent 14.3% of 
the 2022 General Fund Budget. The City of Covington currently has the following ad 
valorem tax assessments: millage comprised of 3.5 millage for retiring general obligation bonds, 
7.08 millage to general fund revenues, and 9.43 millage for operation and maintenance of the 
Fire Department. 

The administration recognizes that the amount of revenues generated does not cover the amount 
of expenditures proposed in the general fund budget. ln order to subsidize this difference, funds 
are taken from the General Fund Balance. The projected difference between revenues and 
expenditures in the 2022 budget is $2,860,670. This includes $3,075,741 in one-time capital 
expenditures. This budget, while balanced, provides for an estimated $4,697,787 unassigned 
General Fund Balance at the end of 2022. An additional $2,707,635 is in Assigned Fund Balance 
for the GFOA recommended 2 months of operating expenditures or revenue range to cover 
emergencies and unexpected expenditures. 

2021 - A Year in Review 

At the beginning of 2021, the City of Covington was striving to keep governmental operations and 
capital projects on track despite staffing, supply, and contractor shortages associated with 
COVID-19. The pandemic led to a restructuring of personnel policies in accordance with CDC 
guidelines, resulting in new payroll practices and reporting that evolved with each variant and new 
CDC guideline. Emergency response plans were revisited, including remote-work capabilities 
and equipment. 

ln March 2021, City government experienced a cyber-attack that shut down all city operations 
except for first responder dispatch, which is directed through the St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs 
Office. All computer systems and phone systems were disconnected, limiting the Citys ability to 
provide essential services. The City contacted the State of Louisiana Cyber lnvestigators 
Alliance, which immediately deployed members of the Secret Service, State Police, GOHSEP, 
and FBI to initiate the criminal investigation. The following day the National Guard was activated 
to City Hall for the next several weeks to assist with the replacement of the Citys servers and re-
establishment of essential city services. Recovery of normal operations took approximately 
6 months, during which Tyler Technologies held the City in a stand-alone disaster mode 
environment with limited capabilities. This limited environment affected the Citys ability to provide 
full services in Finance, Utility Billing, Purchasing, and Payroll until September 2021. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Managements Discussion and Analysis 

At the end of August 2021, the City was impacted by Hurricane lda, which resulted in over 
$5 million in disaster recovery expenditures. Regular governmental operations ceased in the 
days immediately after the storm. Essential personnel focused on recovery efforts and 
documentation for FEMA reimbursements, all while many employees were sheltering in place or 
living in homes with no electricity. The City Council issued an emergency ordinance allowing the 
Mayor to utilize resources necessary to respond to the storm and outlining storm-damage 
permitting protocols. Prior to the storm, the City was preparing the 2022 Capital and Operating 
Budget. The storm delayed the process by one month, putting introduction in October 2021 and 
adoption in December 2021. By mid-December, regular operations had resumed with the addition 
of weekly, if not daily, coordination with FEMA and GOHSEP to submit the Citys $5 million in 
expenditures for reimbursement. As of the 1-year anniversary of Hurricane lda on August 29th, 

the City had received just over $100,000 ofthe $5,000,000 in reimbursements. 

Contact lnformation 

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the Citys finances and to show the Citys accountability for 
the money it receives. lf you have questions about this report or need additional financial 
information, contact: 

Erin Bivona 
Chief Administrative Officer 

317 N. Jefferson Avenue 
Covington, LA 70433 
Phone: 985-898-4714 

Fax: 985-898-4723 
ebivonacovla.com 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2021 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
lnvestments - LAMP 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Certificates of Deposit 
Receivables, Net 
lnternal Balances 
Prepaid Expense 
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, 

Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Loss on Refunding 
Deferred Oufflows - Pension Plans 
Deferred Outflows - Other Postemployment 

Benefits 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Accrued lnterest 
Unearned Revenue 
Compensated Absences 

Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

Revenue Bonds Payable 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

Capital Lease Payable 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

General Obligations Bond Payable 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

Net Pension Liability 
Due in More than One Year 

Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability 
Due in More than One Year 

Total Liabilities  

StatementA 

Governme ntal Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 21,796,698 $ 400 $ 21,797,098 
4,267,030 4,267,030 

252,529 252,529 
302,455 302,455 

9,628,595 913,996 10,542,591 
(6,379,756) 6,379,756 

82,260 7,745 90,005 
2,388,225 1,667,001 4,055,226 

31,976,498 22,912,023 54,888,521 

64,314,534 31,880,921 96,195,455 

67,909 - 67,909 
2,356,611 212,509 2,569,120 

3,567,890 624,389 4,192,279 

5,992,410 836,898 6,829,308 

3,576,259 313,363 3,889,622 
68,063 30,262 98,325 

411,216 411,216 
13,662 13,662 

1 ,956,743 86 1 ,956,829 

376,869 376,869 
290,445 290,445 

255,503 255,503 
442,395 442,395 

380,000 380,000 
2,045,000 2,045,000 

7,582,887 1,231,218 8,814,105 

7,574,044 1,325,476 8,899,520 

24,561,870 3,311,621 27,873,491 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part ofthese financial statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
December31, 2021 

Deferred lnflows of Resources 
Unavailable Revenues 
Deferred lnflows - Pension Obligation 
Deferred Inflows - Other Postemployment 

Benefits 

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Expendable 
Perpetual Care 
Debt Service 
FHA Loan Program 
Drug Forfeiture 
Tree Mitigation 
State and Federal Grants 

Nonexpendable 
Prepaid Expenditures 
Permanent Fund 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position  

StatementA 

Governme ntal Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

20,401 - 20,401 
4,065,541 446,408 4,511,949 

3,094,643 541,568 3,636,211 

7,180,585 987,976 8,168,561 

31,241,825 24,579,024 55,820,849 

3,137 3,137 
1,078,208 1,078,208 

252,529 252,529 
34,187 34,187 
8,611 8,611 

332,773 332,773 

82,260 - 82,260 
24,955 - 24,955 

5,506,004 3,839,198 9,345,202 

$ 38,564,489 $ 28,418,222 $ 66,982,711 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegrai part ofthese financiai statements. 
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CiTY OF COVINGTON, LOUiSiANA Statement B 
Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Net Revenue (Expense> and 
Program Revenues Change in Net Position 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type 

Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Governmentai Activities 
General Government $ 3,259,607 $ 1,783,302 $ 4,959,226 $ - $ 3,482,921 $ - $ 3,482,921 
Public Safety - Police 5,041,05 75,653 - - (4,965,422) - (4,965,422) 
Public Safety - Fire 2,768,922 - - - (2,768,922) - (2,768,922) 
PublicWorks 8,420,816 83,311 - 500,000 (7,837,505) - (7,837,505) 
Culture and Recreation 771,273 142,477 - 246,866 (381,930 - (381,930 
lnterest on Long-Term Debt 82,407 - - - (82,407) - (82,407) 

Total Governmental Activities 20,344,100 2,084,743 4,959,226 746,866 (12,553,265) - (12,553,265) 

Business-Type Activities 
Water 
Sewer 
Garbage 

1,438,531 2,064,623 
2,591,764 2,415,401 
1.010495 1.028.268 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Salesîaxes 
Property Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 
Other General Revenues 

Other Revenues 
lnterest and Penalties 
Non-Employer Contribution 

Revenue 
Transfers 

Totai Generai Revenues, 
Other Revenues, and 
Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

626,092 626,092 
(176,363) (176,363) 

17.773 17.773 

16,131,917 - 16,131,917 
3,288,553 - 3,288,553 

768,835 - 768,835 
291,241 - 291,241 

69,590 1,141 70,731 

327,562 33,031 360,593 
288,769 (288,769) - 

21,166,467 (254,597) 20,911,870 

8,613,202 212,905 8,826,107 

5,040,790 5,508,292 - - - 467,502 467,502 

$ 25,384,890 $ 7,593,035 $ 4,959,226 $ 746,866 (12,553,265) 467,502 (12,085,763) 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total 

Net Position, Beginning ofYear, Restated 29,951,287 28,205,3-17 58 -156,604 

Net Position, End ofYear $ 38,564,489 $ 28,418,222 $ 66,982,711 

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these financiai statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Statement C 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
December31, 2021 

State and Non-Major Totai 
Generai A3 Saies Federai Governmentai Governmentai 

Fund Tax Fund Grants Fund Funds Funds 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivaients $ 21,434,064 $ - $ - $ 362,634 $ 21,796,698 
Equity n Pooled Cash - 6,296,615 - 678,293 6,974,908 
nvestments - LAMP 4,267,030 - - - 4267,030 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 252,529 - - - 252,529 
Certificates of Deposits - - - 302455 302455 
Receivables 

PropertyTax 2,017,603 - - 476,614 2,494,217 
Sales Tax 1,544,542 401,227 - - 1,945,769 
FranchiseTax 189,463 - - - 189,463 
Grants Receivable - - 4,932,831 - 4,932,831 
Other 66,315 - - - 66,315 

Prepaid Expenditures 82,260 - - - 82,260 
Duefrom Other Funds 50,038 - - - 50,038 

Totai Assets $ 29.903.844 $ 6.697.842 $ 4932.831 $ 1,819996 $ 43,354,513 

Liabiiities, Deferred infiows of 
Resources, and Fund Baiances 

Liabiiities 

Accounts Payable $ 3,411,098 $ 134,551 $ 19,735 $ 10875 $ 3,576,259 
Deficit in Pooled Cash 10,721,367 - 2,621,914 - 13,343,281 
Accrued Payroll Expenditures 68,063 - - - 68,063 
Unearned Revenue - - 1,956,743 - 1,956,743 
Due to Other Funds 22,000 2,652 1.366 35403 61421 

Totai Liabiiities 14.222,528 137.203 4.599,758 46,278 19,005,767 

Deferred infiows of Resources 

Unavailable Revenues 31,204 - 300 - 31,504 

Totai Deferred infiows 
ofResources 31,204 - 300 - 31,504 

Fund Baiances 

Nonspendable 
Prepaid Expenditures 82,260 - - - 82,260 
Permanent Fund - - - 24.955 24,955 

Restricted for: 
Perpetual Care - - - 3,137 3,137 
Debt Services - - - 1,078,208 1,078,208 
Fl-IA Loan Program 252,529 - - - 252,529 
Drug Forteiture - - - 34,187 34,187 
Tree Mitigation - - - 8,611 8,611 
State and Federal Grants - - 332,773 - 332,773 

Committed 
Capital Outlay - 6,560,639 - 624620 7,185,259 

Assigned 
2022 Operating Budget 2,860,670 - - - 2,860,670 
Contingency 2,707,635 - - - 2,707,635 

Unassigned 9,747,018 - - - 9,747,018 

Totai Fund Baiances 15,650,112 6,560,639 332,773 1773,718 24,317242 

Totai Liabiiities, Deferred 
lnfiows of Resources, 
and Fund Baiances $ 29.903844 $ 6,697,842 $ 4,932,831 $ 1,819,996 $ 43354,513 

The accompanying notes are an integrai part ofthese financiai statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2021 

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
in the governmental funds: 

Governmental Capital Assets 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Deferred outflows of resources - pension used in governmental 
activities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Deferred inflows of resources - pension used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds. 

Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB used in governmental 
activities are not due and payable ¡n the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds. 

Some of the Citys revenues will be collected after year-end, 
but are not available soon enough to pay for the current periods 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental 
funds balance sheet. 

Deferred inflows of resources - debt refunding are currently 
expended in the governmental fund; whereas they are 
capitalized and amortized over the life of the respective 
debt in the statement of net position. 

Long-term liabilities, ¡ncluding bonds payable, net OPEB 
liability, net pension liability, and compensated absenses, 
are not due and payable ¡n the current period and, therefore, 
are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Accrued lnterest on Bonds 
Compensated Absences 
Revenue Bonds 
Capital Lease Obligation 
General Obligations Bonds 
Net Pension Liability 
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability 

Net Position of Governmental Jtivities 

Statement D 

$ 24,317,242 

$ 59,873,233 
(25,508,510) 34,364,723 

2,356,61 1 

(4,065,541) 

3,567,890 

(3,094,643) 

11,103 

67,909 

(13,662) 
(667,314) 

(697,898) 
(2,425,000) 
(7,582,887) 
(7,574,044) (18,960,805) 

$ 38,564,489 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Statement E 

State and Non-Major Total 
General 3 Sales Federal Governmental Governmental 

Fund TaxFund GrantsFund Funds Funds 

Reve nues 

Taxes 
Sales Taxes $ 12,336,113 $ 3,795,804 $ - $ - $ 16,131917 

Property Taxes 2,731,20 - - 557,353 3,288553 
Franchise Taxes 768,835 - - - 768,835 

Licenses and Permits 1,585,952 - - - 1,585,952 

OtherRevenues 291,241 - - - 291,241 

Fines and Forteitures 75,653 - - - 75,653 

Charges tor Services 142,477 - - 83,311 225,788 
IntergovernmentaI Revenues 197,350 - - - 197,350 

lnterest and Penalties 48,554 20.625 - 411 69,590 
State and Federal Grants - - 5,706,092 - 5,706,092 

18,177,375 3,816,429 5,706,092 641,075 28,340,971 Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Current 

General Government 
pubiic Safety - Police 

Public Safety - Fire 
Public Works 

Culture and Recreation 
Capital Outlay 
Capital Lease 

Principal 

lnterest 

Debt Service 
Principal 

lnterest 

Total Expenditures 

Deticiency of Revenues 

Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 

Proceeds from Capital Lease 

Transfers ln 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear 

Fund Balances, End of Year  

- 461 3,620921 
- - 4,791,874 
- - 2,506,187 
- - 6,694,512 
- - 628,480 

255,818 - 3,141,483 

- - 189,248 
- - 18,907 

- 797,000 797,000 

- 51968 51968 

3,576,589 43,871 
4,791,874 - 

2,506,187 - 
6,694,512 - 

628,480 - 
2,225,080 660,585 

189,248 - 

18,907 - 

20,630,877 704,456 255,818 849,429 22,440,580 

(2,453,502) 3,111,973 5,450,274 (208,354) 5,900,391 

300,895 - - - 300,895 

21,583,535 - - 325,795 21,909,330 
(14,935,523) (1,395,184) (5,289,854) - (21,620,561) 

6,948,907 (1,395,184) (5,289,854) 325,795 589,664 

4,495,405 1,716,789 160,420 117,441 6,490,055 

11,154,707 4,843,850 172353 1,656,277 17,827187 

$ 15,650,112 $ 6.560.639 $ 332,773 $ 1,773,718 $ 24,317,242 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegrai part ofthese financiai statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported tor governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Governmentai tunds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in 
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives through depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlay in the 
current period. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not rovide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the 
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of çiovernmental funds. 
Neither transaction has any effect on net position. This 
amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities on the statement 
of net position. 

Compensated absences are reported in the statement of activities when 
earned. As they do not require the use of current financial resources, 
they are not reported as expenditures on governmental funds until they 
have matured. This is the amount of compensated absences reported in the 
statement of activities in the prior year that has matured in the current year. 

Other postemployment benefit obligation reported in the statement of 
activities does not require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. 

Cash pension contributions reported in the funds were less than 
the calculated pension expense on the statement of activities and, 
therefore, decrease net position. 

Amortization of Loss on Refunding 

Difference in interest cost on the modified accrual basis as reported in 
the fund statements versus interest expense on the full accrual basis. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegrai part ofthese financiai statements. 

Statement F 

$ 6,490,055 

346,621 

327,562 

189,248 

(39, 988) 

(412,895) 

1 ,228,026 

(16,025) 

4,493 

$ 8,613,202 
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 
December 31, 2021 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Equity in Pooled Cash 
Accounts Receivable, Net of Uncoliectible 
Prepaid Expenses 
Due from Other Funds 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
CapitaiAssets, NetofAccumulated Depreciation 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Oufflows - Pension Plans 
Deferred Outflows - Other Postemployment Benefits 

Total Deferred Outfiows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll Expense 
Lease Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Due to Other Funds 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Unearned Revenues 
Net Pension Liability 
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred lnflows of Resources 
Deferred lnflows - Pension Plans 
Deferred lnflows - Other Postemployment Benefits 

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted Net Position 

Total Net Position 

Statement G 

$ 400 
6,368,373 

913,996 
7,745 

22,000 

7,312,514 

24,579,024 

24,579,024 

31,891,538 

212,509 
624,389 

836,898 

313,363 
30,262 

411,216 
10,617 

765,458 

86 
1,231,218 
t ,325,476 

2,556,780 

3,322,238 

446,408 
541,568 

987,976 

24,579,024 
3,839,198 

$ 28,418,222 

The accompanying notes are an integrai part ofthese financiai statements. 



$ 2,332,537 
1,951,030 
1 ,028,268 

70,764 
41,514 
36,264 
35,815 
33,031 
12,100 

5,541 ,323 

1,242,597 
1 ,096,506 
1,010,495 
1,691,192 

500,533 

CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Operating Revenues 
Sewer Maintenance Fees 
Water Revenues 
Garbage Coilection Fees 
DHH Fee 
Water Installations 
Miscellaneous 
Connection Fees 
Non-Employer Contribution Revenue 
Sewer lnstallations 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Sewer Department Expenses 
Water Department Expenses 
Garbage Department Expenses 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lncome (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
lnterest Income 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 
(Expe nses) 

lncome (Loss) Before Transfers 

T ransfe rs 
Transfers ln (Out) 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning ofYear, Restated 

Net Position, End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements. 

Statement H 

1,141 

501,674 

(288,769) 

212,905 

28,205,317 

$ 28,418,222 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers and Users 
Other Receipts 
Payments to Suppiiers 
Payments to Employees 

Net Cash Provided byOperating Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Transfers In (Out) 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities 
lnterest Earned on lnvestments 

Net Cash Provided by lnvesting Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning ofYear 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating lncome (Loss) to Net 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome (Loss) to Net 

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
(lncrease) Decrease in: 

Accounts Receivable 
Deferred Outflows - Pension Plans 
Deferred Outflows - Other Postemployment Benefits 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll Expenses 
Customer Deposits 
Due to Other Funds 
Net Pension Liability 
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liabiiity 
Deferred lnflows - Pension Plans 
Deferred lnflows - Other Postemployment Benefits 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegrai part ofthese financiai statements. 

Statement l 

$ 5,225,065 
36,264 

(2,233,284) 
(l ,249,905) 

1,778,140 

(l ,661 ,668) 
(288,769) 

(l ,950,437) 

1,141 

1,141 

(171,156) 

6,539,929 

$ 6,368,773 

$ 500,533 

1,691,192 

(278,002) 
655,841 

(476,995) 

13,127 
5,041 

(1 ,992) 
1,960 

(893,945) 
(295,484) 
406,084 
450,780 

$ 1,778,140 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Statement J 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Fund 
December31, 2021 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 29,240 
Accrued lnterest 5,769 
lnvestments 1 ,048,595 

Total Assets $ 1,083,604 

Net Position 
Restricted for Other Postemployment Benefits 1 ,083,604 

Total Net Position $ 1,083,604 

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part ofthese financial statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

r rr 

lnvestment lncome 

lnterest and Dividends 
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Vaiue of lnvestments 
lnvestment Expense 

Total Additions 

Deductions 
Bank Charges 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning ofYear 

Net Position, End ofYear  

Statement K 

$ 23,980 
(21 ,559) 

(9,080) 

(6,659) 

4,644 

4,644 

(11,303) 

1 ,094,907 

$ 1,083,604 

The accompanying notes are an integrai part ofthese financiai statements. 
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ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Covington, Louisiana (the City), was incorporated in 1813. The current City 
Code, as adopted in 2002, authorizes the following services: public safety - fire, public 
safety - police, public works, recreation, and general administrative services. Education, 
health, and welfare are administered by other governmental entities. 

Reporting Entity 
The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and seven-member 
governing council (the Council). The accompanying financial statements present the City 
as the primary government. The accounting policies of the City conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The more 
significant accounting policies used by the City are described below. 

ln evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has considered all potential 
component units in accordance with Section 21 00: Defining the Financial Reporting Entity 
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification. As such, the City 
has no component units. 

The City of Covington, Louisiana adopted the Home Rule Charter on November 7, 1978, 
under the provisions of Article Vl, Section 5, ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The 
City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government and provides the following 
services as authorized by its charter: public safety, highways and streets, sanitation and 
utilities, health and social services, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning 
and zoning, and general administrative services. 

The City has seven council members which serve four year terms. Three of the council 
members were elected for an additional term in 2019. The council members are 
elected by majority vote. The City covers an approximately eight square mile area and 
has approximately 10,464 residents. The City has approximately 200 employees who 
encompass police, fire, public works, recreation, and general administration employees. 
The City operates a water department and a sewerage department. 

Government-Wide Financial and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the 
primary government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges to external customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported 
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 
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ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of 
a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 
(1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary fund, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable 
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of 
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. 
The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in 
the financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they 
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences , and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. lssuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 
Property taxes, saies taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the 
current fiscai period are ail considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as 
revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and 
the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue 
source (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue 
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements 
have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability 
period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

The proprietary fund and other postemployment benefit trust are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

Government- Wide Financial Statements 
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are 
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental 
funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the Citys enterprise fund. 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary fund, and 
fiduciary fund, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes 
where the amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the inter-fund services provided 
and other charges between the Citys wastewater and sanitation services functions and 
various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide information about the Citys funds, including its 
fiduciary fund. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, 
and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining 
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

35 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
The City reports the foiiowing major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Citys primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund. 
Revenues are derived primarily from property and sales taxes, licenses and permits, 
interest and penalties, and other revenues. At December 31, 2021, there was a 
minimum fund balance of $2,860,670 which consists of approximately two months of 
expenditures. 

The A3 Sales Tax Fund is used to account for tax revenues derived from sales tax 
received within the geographic boundaries of the annexation area to finance 
development within that area. The A3 Sales Tax Fund revenues are committed to 
fund capital outlay projects of the City. 

The State and Federal Grants Fund is used to account for state and federal grants that 
are restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted to expenditures for specified purposes other than capital 
projects. 

The Debt Se,vice Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources that 
are restricted, committed, or assigned for the payment of principal and interest on long-
term obligations of governmental funds. 

Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition and construction of the Citys major 
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

The Perpetual Care Permanent Fund is used to account for resources legally held in 
trust to finance maintenance for the Citys municipal cemeteries. The revenues 
designated for perpetual care are placed in trust and the interest earned is transferred 
to the General Fund. 

The Proprietary Fund accounts for the water, sewer, and garbage services it provides 
to the residents and businesses of the City. 

The OPEB Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the General Employees OPEB 
trust investments, which accumulate resources for OPEB benefit payments to qualified 
employees. 



ClTY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. 
Any residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds 
and advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial 
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide 
financial statements. Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., 
the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal 
balances in the governmental activities column. 

Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the 
enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal 
balances in the business-type activities column. 

Budgetary lnformation 
Budgetary basis of accounting 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles for the General Fund, A3 Sales tax fund, debt service funds, Special Revenue 
Funds, and Capital Project Funds. The Capital Projects Funds are appropriated on a 
project-length basis. Certain Special Revenue Funds and the Permanent Fund do not 
have appropriated budgets since other means control the use of these resources (e.g., 
grant awards and endowment requirements) and sometimes span a period of more than 
one fiscal year. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The Citys 
department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers 
of appropriations between departments require the approval of the Council. The legal level 
of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations) is the department level. 

Appropriations in all budgeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year even if they 
have related encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed 
(executory) contracts for goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and 
commitments). While all appropriations and encumbrances lapse at year end, valid 
outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory contract 
is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent 
years budget pursuant to state regulations. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Citys cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and short- term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition. 

lnvestments - LAMP 
lnvestments for the City are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market 
prices) except for the position in the Louisiana Asset Management POOI (LAMP). The 
Louisiana Asset Management POOI meets all of the specified criteria in Section 150: 
lnvestments to qualify to elect to measure their investments at amortized cost. 
Accordingly, the fair value of the Citys position in the pOO1 is equal to the value of the 
pooled shares. 

Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 allows the investment in direct United States 
Treasury obligations; bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued 
or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. government instrumentalities, which are 
federally sponsored; direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book-entry-only 
securities guaranteed by the U.S. government; time certificates of deposit of any bank 
domiciled or having a branch office in the state of Louisiana; savings accounts or shares 
of certain savings and loan associations and savings banks; certain accounts of federally-
or state-chartered credit unions, and certain mutual or trust fund institutions. 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Certain assets of the City are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net 
position because their use is limited by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation; or by restrictions imposed externally by creditors, granters, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments. Restricted cash and cash equivalents are for 
funds generated from the FHA loans for the purpose of making loans to area businesses 
at low interest rates to promote economic development. 

Receivables 
Unbilled receivables - An amount for unbilled revenue is recorded in the Utility Fund for 
services rendered, but not yet billed as of the end of the fiscal year. The receivable is 
derived from the cycle billings generated subsequent to fiscal year end and prorated for 
usage in December. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Accounts receivable have been reported net of the 
allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts receivable in excess of 90 days are subject to 
being considered as uncollectible. 

Unavailable revenue - Unavailable revenue recorded on the governmental fund balance 
sheet represents amounts received before eligibility requirements are met. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

lnterfund Activities and Transactions 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual 
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivabies and payables are 
classified as due from other funds or due to other funds within the fund financial 
statements. Long-term borrowings between funds are classified as advances to other 
funds or advances from other funds in the fund financial statements. These amounts 
are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement 
of net position, except for any residual balance outstanding between the governmental 
and business-type activities at the end of the fiscal year, which are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as internal balances. 

lnterfund transactions are reflected as services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. 
Services provided, deemed to be at or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when a fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefitting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other 
inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or 
business-type funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide 
presentation. 

Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather 
than when purchased. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental 
or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets, except for infrastructure assets, are defined by the City as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. 

ln accordance with GASB Codification, the City has elected to not capitalize infrastructure 
retroactively. As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, 
including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The 
reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts 
spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency ofthe item 
or increase its estimated useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated 
acquisition value at the date of donation. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

Capital Assets (Continued) 
lnterest ¡ncurred during the construction phase of capitai assets of the Enterprise Fund is 
inciuded as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of interest 
capitalized depends on the specific circumstances. lnterest attributable to capitalized 
assets as of December 31, 2021 was immaterial to the financial statements. 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, 
equipment, and infrastructure of the primary government are depreciated using the 
straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Estimated 
on Useful Lives 

Building 
lm provements 
Vehicles 
Tools and Equipment 
lnfrastructure 
Sewer Plant and Lines 
Water Wells, Tanks, and Lines 

10 - 40 Years 
5 - 40 Years 
5- lüYears 
5 - 25 Years 

10 - 40 Years 
5 - 40 Years 
5 - 40 Years 

Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources 
ln addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) 
until then. 

The City has three (3) items that qualify for reporting as deferred outflows of resources - 
pension deferrals, OPEB deferrals, and deferred loss on refunding - which are reported in 
the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position. The deferred 
amount on refunding results from debt refinancing, whereby the reacquisition price of the 
funding debt instruments exceed their net carrying amount. The deferred amount on 
refunding is amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The 
deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB deferrals will be recognized as an expense 
in future reporting years. 

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The City has three (3) items that qualify for reporting as deferred inflows of resources 
- pension deferrals, OPEB deferrals, and unavailable revenues. The deferred inflows 
related to pension and OPEB deferrals will be recognized as a reduction to expense in 
future reporting years. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources (Continued) 
Unavailable revenue, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, is 
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report 
unavailable revenues related to grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as 
an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

Compensated Absences 
City employees earn vacation and sick benefits on an escalating scale based on years of 
service at the beginning of each fiscal year. City employees are not allowed to carry over 
vacation benefits but are allowed to carry over sick benefits up to a maximum of 720 hours. 
At the time of termination, city employees are paid for any accumulated unused vacation 
benefits; however, sick benefits are not paid at termination. 

Civil service employees earn vacation benefits on an escalating scale based on years of 
service at the beginning of each fiscal year and are allowed to carry up to 500 hours. 
Police employees earn sick benefits on a monthly basis, while fire employees must adhere 
to R.S. 33:1995, which allows up to 52 weeks of sick benefits. All civil service employees 
are allowed to roll over unlimited sick benefits; however, at termination, only accumulated 
unused sick benefits up to 500 hours are paid. 

The liability for such leave is reported as incurred in the government-wide financial 
statements. A liability for those amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the 
liability has matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements. As a result, the 
amount of accumulated annual leave payable in the government-wide financial statements 
at December 31, 2021 is $667,314. 

Long-Term Obligations 
ln the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are recorded as adjustments to 
interest expense. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. ln accordance with GASB Codification Section 130: lnterest Costs - lmputation, 
bond issuance costs are expensed in the period incurred except for prepaid insurance 
costs. 

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing uses. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Municipal Employees Retirement System, Municipal 
Police Employees Retirement System, and the Firefighters Retirement System and 
additions to/deductions from these retirement systems fiduciary net positions have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement systems. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at 
fair value. 

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liabllity 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, OPEB expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position, and additions to/deductions from the plans fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at 
fair value. 

Categories and Classification ofNet Position 
ln the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and 
displayed in three components: 

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets - The net investment in capital assets component of 
net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also should 
be included in this component of net position. lf there are significant unspent related 
debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at the end of the reporting period, the 
portion of the debt or deferred inflow of resources attributable to the unspent amount 
should not be included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. lnstead, 
that portion of the debt or deferred inflow of resources should be included in the same 
net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use 
either by external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of 
restricted or net investment in capital assets. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

Categories and Ciassification ofNet Position (Continued) 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. ln order to calculate the 
amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be 
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. lt is the Citys 
policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net 
position is applied. 

Categories and Classification ofFund Equity 
The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions, specifies the following classifications: 

!Von-Spendable Fund Balance - Non-spendable fund balances are amounts that 
cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted Fund Balance - Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints 
placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation 
authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of 
resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable 
requirement (compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for the 
specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance - The committed fund balance classification includes 
amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action 
of the Citys highest level of decision-making authority. The City Council (Council) ls 
the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption of an 
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the 
limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the 
adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 

Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are 
intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be 
classified as committed. The Council has by resolution authorized the Mayor or the 
Councils designee established in the Citys Fund Balance Policy to assign fund 
balance. The Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating 
fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the 
subsequent years appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally 
only exist temporarily. ln other words, an additional action does not normally have to 
be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, no 
additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Assets, Deferred Oufflows, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows, and Net Position (Continued) 

Categories and Ciassification ofFund Equity (Continued) 
Unassigned Fund Balance - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for 
the General Fund and Nonmajor Funds. The General Fund is the only fund which may 
report a positive unassigned fund balance. 

Fund Balance Policies - Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various 
categories based on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for 
specific purposes. The City itself can establish limitations on the use of resources 
through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned 
fund balance). 

Fund Balance FlowAssumptions - Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular 
purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, 
assigned, and unassigned fund balance). ln order to calculate the amounts to report 
as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental 
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 
the resources are considered to be applied. lt is the Citys policy to consider restricted 
fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of 
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance 
can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed 
by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 
Program Revenues - Amounts reported as program revenues include l) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions 
(including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for 
specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. 

Property Taxes - Property taxes are due on December 31st  and become delinquent if not 
paid by January 1st  Ad Valorem taxes are recorded as revenues when levied. Tax liens 
are filed on all unpaid bills. The City bills property taxes using the assessed values 
determined by the tax assessor of St. Tammany Parish. The St. Tammany Parish Sheriff 
collects property taxes and remits taxes to the City, as collected. 

Total property tax revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021, was $3,288,553 and 
is recorded in the funds as follows: General Fund - $2,731 ,200 and General Obligation 
Debt Service Fund - $557,353. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued) 
Proprietary Fund Operating and fVon-Operating Revenues and Expenses - The 
Proprietary Fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
¡tems. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a Proprietary Funds principal ongoing 
operations. Principal operating revenues for the Citys proprietary fund consist of charges 
to customers and users of its water, sewer and garbage services. Operating expenses 
for Enterprise Funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others 
and therefore cannot be used to support the Citys own programs. The fiduciary fund 
categories within this ACFR include one Other Postemployment Benefits Fund. This type 
of fund is used to report resources required to be held in trust for the members and 
beneficiaries of the City, which was established in 2018 for the purpose of providing 
postemployment retiree medical benefits for the Citys eligible retirees. 

Encumbrances 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other 
commitments for expenditure of monies are recorded as reservations of budget, is 
employed as an extension of the statutory required budgetary process. At year-end, 
outstanding encumbrances represent material purchase commitments for goods and 
services which were ordered, budgeted, and appropriated, but had not been received or 
completed as of that date. Although encumbrances lapse at year-end, it is the intention 
to substantially honor these encumbrances under authority provided in the subsequent 
years budget. Total encumbrances as of December 31, 2021 were as follows: 

mou nt 

General Fund $ 2,236,512 
Special Revenue Fund 

A3 Sales Tax Fund 2,278,766 

T otal $ 4,515,278 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make various estimates. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial 
statements were available to be issued, October 25, 2022. No subsequent events 
occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Prior Period Adjustment 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements include the following prior 
period adjustment: a prior period adjustment to the proprietary fund increasing net position 
by $448,221, which corrects an error in the December 31, 2020 financial statements 
related to an unearned revenue balance which was earned at December 31, 2020. 
Accordingly, change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2020 is increased 
by $448,221. 

Recently lssued Accounting Pronouncements 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued statements that will become 
effective in future years. These statements are as follows: 

ln June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this 
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement 
increases the usefulness of governments financial statements by requiring recognition of 
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating 
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on payment 
provisions of the contract. lt establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. 
Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred 
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about 
governments leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning afterJune 15, 2021. 

The City is evaluating the requirements of the above statements and the impact on 
reporting. 

Note 2. Detailed Notes on All Funds 

Deposits and lnvestments 
The City is authorized under state law to depositfunds within a fiscal agent bank organized 
under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the United States, 
or laws of the United States. Under state laws, these deposits must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. State Law 
R.S. 39:1225 provides that the amount ofthe security shall at all times be equal to 100% 
of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that portion of 
the deposits insured by United States. 

Under state law, deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal 
deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The fair value 
of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the 
amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the 
pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to 
both parties. 
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Note 2. Detailed Notes on All Funds 

The Citys deposits are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. The deposits are 
categorized as follows at December 31, 2021: 

Carrying Bank 
Å1mount Balance 

Demand Deposits $ 22,049,627 $ 22,232,761 
Certificates of Deposit 302 ,455 302,455 

Total $ 22,352,082 $ 22,535,216 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the Citys deposits may not be returned to the City. As of December 31, 2021, the Citys 
bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2021, 
$21 ,760,261 of deposits were secured by the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal 
agent bank 

ln accordance with state law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial 
institutions must be secured with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or 
par. The City was in compliance with the deposit and investment laws and regulations as 
of December 31, 2021. 

Deposits available within various funds, except the OPEB trust fund, were consolidated 
for investment purposes. lnterest earned was allocated to the various funds based on 
their average cash and investment balances. The OPEB trust fund is authorized to invest 
in corporate bonds and stocks, money markets funds, and mortgages and notes. 

As of December 31, 2021, the Citys OPEB investments are held in the form of U.S. 
government bonds and corporate bonds through a financial brokerage firm. 

lnterest Rate Risk - lnterest rate risk is the possibility that interest rates will rise and reduce 
the fair value of an investment. The Citys investment policy limits interest rate risk by 
requiring that an attempt be made to match investment maturities with known cash needs 
and anticipated cash flow requirements. 

Credit Risk - Section lSO - lnvestments ofthe GASB Codification requires that governments 
provide information about credit risk associated with their investments by disclosing the 
credit rating of investments in debt securities as described by nationally recognized 
statistical rating organizations. The Citys investment policy and the investment policy for 
the Citys OPEB Trust limits investment to securities with specific ranking criteria. 
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Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
Concentration Risk - Section 150 - lnvestments of the GASB Codification requires 
disclosures of investments in any one issuer that represents five percent or more of total 
investments, excluding investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
government, investments in mutual funds, external investment pools and other pooled 
investments. The Citys investment policy does not address concentration risk. The 
OPEB Trust restricts the percentage of assets that may be held in the stock of any one 
company and the bonds issued by any one issuer. 

Fair Value - GASB Codification Section 3100 - Fair Value Measurements establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 measurements). 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the codification are described as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the City has the ability to 
access. 

Level 2 lnputs to the valuation methodology include: 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive 
markets; 

• lnputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or 
liability; and 

• lnputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 
market data by correlation or other means. 

Level 3 lnputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 

The assets or liabilitys fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is 
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 
Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Deposits and lnvestments (Continued) 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Citys assets at 
fair value as of December 31, 2021: 

Maturities (in vea 
Fair Less More 

Fiduciary Fund Value than 1 1 - 5 than 5 Level 

Debt Securities - U.S. 
GovernmentObligations $ 348,775 $ 152,116 $ 147,158 $ 49,501 2 

Debt Securities - 
Corporate Bonds 458,278 89,980 216,626 151,672 

Debt Securities - 
Corporate Bonds 241,542 70,675 134,745 36,122 2 

Total $ 1048,595 $ 312,771 $ 498,529 $ 237,295 

The following is a description of the valuation methodology used for assets measured at 
fair value. There have been no changes in the methodology used at December 31, 2021. 

Debt and Equity Securities - Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair 
value hierarchy are valued using quoted market prices for those securities. Debt securities 
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique 
based on the price or yield of similar debt securities. 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although 
the City believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 

For the Utility Fund, operating revenues are generally recognized on the basis of cycle 
billings rendered monthly. The amount of services delivered for the period from the last 
billing date to December 31, 2021 (unbilled receivable), is estimated and accrued at year 
end. The allowance for uncollectible accounts at December 31, 2021 was $116,735. lf 
payments are not received from customers, services are shut off and deposits are applied 
against negative balances. 

All account receivables are shown net of allowances for uncollectable accounts for 
governmental funds. Property taxes are considered fully collected (97% ofthe levy) during 
and prior to the end of the fiscal year. Therefore, no material amounts of property taxes 
are uncollectable as of December 31, 2021. There are no other reserves for receivables 
recorded by the City as of December 31, 2021. 
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Accounts Receivable (Continued) 
The accounts receivable and allowance for uncollectible accounts at December 31, 2021, 
were as follows: 

Governmental Funds 

Property Tax 
Sales Tax 
Franchise Tax 
Grants Receivable 
Other Receivables 

Total Governmental Funds 

Proprietary Fund 
Under 30 Days 
Over 31 under 60 Days 
Over 61 under 90 Days 
Over91 Days 

Less Allowance 

Unbilled Receivables 

Total Proprietary Fund 

Total Accounts Receivable, Net 

$ 2,494,217 
1 ,945,769 

1 89,463 
4,932,831 

66,315 

9,628,595 

417,404 
26,461 
10,545 
71,963 

116,735 
409,638 
504,358 

913,996 

$ 10,542,591 

lnvestments - LAMP 
lnvestments - LAMP of $4,267,030, which are stated at fair value using published market 
quotes for those securities at December 31, 2021, consist of shares in the Louisiana Asset 
Management POOI, lnc. (LAMP), a local government investment pool. 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, lnc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate 
in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP 
is to provide a safe environmentfor the placement of public funds in short term, high quality 
investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which 
local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and lnvestment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of 
credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign 
currency risk for all public entity investments. 
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lnvestments - LAMP (Continued) 
LAMP is an ¡nvestment pool that, to the extent practicai, invests in a manner consistent 
with GASB Statement No. 79. The foiiowing facts are reievant for investment pools: 

• Credit Risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poors. 

• Custodial Credit Risk: LAMP participants investments in the pOO1 are evidenced 
by shares of the pOO1. lnvestments in pools shouid be disciosed, but not 
categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or 
book-entry form. The public entitys investment is with the pool, not the securities 
that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of Credit Risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent 
disclosure requirement. 

• lnterest Rate Risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate 
risk disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of 
LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 60 days, and consists of no securities 
with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMPs total investments 
was 45 as of December 31, 2021. 

• Foreign Currency Risk: Not applicable. 

lnvestments in LAMP are stated at amortized cost based on quoted market rates. The fair 
value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP, and the value of the position in the 
external investment pOO1 is the same as the net asset value of the pOO1 shares. 

LAMP, lnc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an 
investment company. 

lf you have any questions, please feel free to contact the LAMP administrative office at 
800-249-5267. 
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Capital Assets 
The following ¡s a summary of the changes in capital assets for governmental activities for 
the year ended December 31, 2021: 

Balance Balance 
•12J3112020 lncreases Decreases 1213112021 

$ 807,452 $ - $ - $ 807,452 
2,069,638 1,806,059 (2,294,924) 1,580,773 

2,877,090 1,806,059 (2,294,924) 2,388,225 

9,638,316 64,260 - 9,702,576 
8,790,338 943,118 - 9,733,456 
5,353,585 217,742 - 5,571,327 
4,258,520 390,lO (3,990) 4,644,631 

25,812,331 2,020,687 - 27,833,018 

53,853,090 3,635,908 (3,990) 57,485,008 

(3,37l,606) (167,065) - (3,538,671) 
(3,487,061) (442,320) - (3,929,381) 
(3,088,495) (392,958) - (3,48l ,453) 
(3,308,387) (240,830) - (3,549,217) 
(9,458,099) (1,551,689) - (11,009,788) 

(22,713,648) (2,794,862) - (25,508,510) 

31,139,442 841,046 (3,990) 3l,976,498 

$ 34,016,532 $ 2.647,105 $ (2,298,914) $ 34,364,723 

Governmental Pctivities 

Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

Land 
Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Building 
lmprovements 
Vehicles 
Tools and Equipment 
lnfrastructure 

Totai Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Less Pccumulated Depreciation for: 

Building 
lmprovements 
Vehicles 
Tools and Equipment 
lnfrastructure 

Totai Pccumulated Depreciation 

Totai Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 

Totai 
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Capital Assets (Continued) 
As of December 31, 2021, construction in progress for governmental activities consisted 
of the foiiowing: 

Expended Å4mount Committed 
as of 12131121 Authorized Financina 

$ 369,693 $ 439,933 $ 70,240 
120,635 457,690 337,055 
69,969 219,518 149,549 
88,113 239,560 151,447 

465,381 692,825 227,444 
23,390 101,365 77,975 
24,698 37,933 13,235 

3,950 40,000 36,050 
22,500 22,500 - 

102,304 234,670 132,366 
57,765 57,804 39 
92,755 935,109 842,354 
42,373 50,000 7,627 
17,500 120,000 102,500 
79,747 150,000 70,253 

$ 1,580,773 $ 3798907 $ 2218134 

Governmental Activities 

Boston Street Overlay 
Blue Swamp Creek Drainage 
lvle Branch Drainage 
Jefferson Ave. Shared Path 
River Forest Drainage - Patricia Dr. 
Guardrail Replacement 
Downtown Drainage Repairs 
Seeling Drive lmprovements 
Ozone Park 
Columbia Street Bridge 
Evidence Room Renovation 
Lurline P&D 
Transportation Consulting 
Harrison Street Drainage 
u.S. 190 Bridge Utility Relocations 

Total 

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for business-type activities 
for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

Balance Balance 
12131/2020 lncreases Decreases 1213112021 

$ 1,179,014 $ 1,664,049 $ (1,176,062) $ ,667,001 

1 179,014 1,664,049 (1,176,062) 1,667,001 

,075,552 - - ,075,552 
33,74,542 789,309 - 34,530,85 
l0,57,338 388,373 (2,822) l0,883,889 

45,334,432 1,177,682 (2,822) 46,490,292 

(6,003,92) (,349,167) - (7,353,079) 
(5,900,986) (342,025) 7,82 (6,225,90) 

(2 904,898) ( ,69 , 92) 7,82 (23,578,269) 

23,429,534 (53,510) (4,001) 22,92,023 

$ 24,608,548 $ ,50,539 $ (1,80,063) $ 24,579,024 

Business-Tvoe Activities 

Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Buildings 
Sewer Plant and Lines 
WaterWells, Tanks, and Lines 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Sewer Plant and Lines 
WaterWells, Tanks, and Lines 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 

Total 
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Capital Assets (Continued) 
As of December 31, 2021, construction in progress for business-type activities consisted 
of the following: 

Expended 4mount Committed 
as of 12/31/21 Authorized Financinct 

$ 670,910 $ 670,910 $ - 
130,488 1,160,406 1,029,918 
40,000 40,000 - 

4,000 1,336,000 1,332,000 
40,563 45,000 4,437 
73,724 420,000 346,276 
85,168 405,000 319,832 
13,440 1,200,000 1,186,560 

435,695 472,012 36,317 
37,176 90,000 52,824 

135,837 141,425 5,588 

$ 1,667,001 $ 5,980,753 $ 4,313,752 

Business-Type Activities 
Proiect 

Water Meters 
2020 Gravity Sewer Repairs 
U.S. 190 Project 
River Forest Sewer Repair 
St. Pauls LS Wet Well Cleaning 
U.S. 190 LS lmprovements 

W 16th  Ave Water Production 
WWTP Beit Press 
WWTP Generator 
WWTP lmprovements Phase 2 
WWTP lmprovements Phase 3 

Total 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, depreciation was charged to functions/programs 
of the City as follows: 

Governmental ,6ctivities 

General Government 
Public Safety - Police 
Public Safety - Fire 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 

Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities  

Amount 

$ 413,829 
249,201 
262,735 

1 ,726,304 
142,793 

$ 2,794,862 

Business-Type Activities Amount 

Sewer Department $ 1,349,167 
Water Department 342,025 

Totai Depreciation - Business-Type Activities $ 1,691,192 
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Long-Term Debt and Liabilities 
Long-term liabilities other than debt are normally liquidated by the General Fund. These 
include net OPEB liability, net pension liability, and compensated absences. 

General obligation bonds and sales tax bonds are all direct placement and are comprised 
of the following individual issues: 

Governmental ßtivities 

General Obligation Bonds 
Series 201 1 - Refunding 
Series 2016 - Refunding 

Sales Tax Revenue Bond 
Series 201 1 - Sales Tax 

Refunding 

Total 

Date of Authorized 
lssuance and lssued 

09/20/2011 $ 777,000 
08/02/2016 3,890,000 

11/02/2011 2,775,000 

$ 7,442,000 

lnterest Maturity Principal 
Rate Date Outstanding 

2.09% 09/01/2021 $ - 
1 .69% 03/01/2027 2,425,000 

2.09% 11/01/2021 - 

$ 2,425,000 

Total future principal and interest payments are as follows: 

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Total 
December 31. Principal lnterest Principal lnterest 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

Thereafter 

Total 

$ 380,000 $ 
385,000 
400,000 
410,000 
420,000 
430.000  

37,772 
31,307 
24,674 
17,830 
10,816 
3.634  

380,000 
385,000 
400,000 
410,000 
420,000 
430.000  

37,772 
31,307 
24,674 
17,830 
10,816 
3.634 

$ 

$ 2,425,000 $ 126,033 $ 2,425,000 $ 126,033 

As of December 31, 2021, there is $1,078,208 in restricted fund balance available in the 
Debt Service Funds to service the governmental activity bonds. 

General obligation bonds are secured by an annual ad valorem tax levy. ln accordance with 
R.S. 39:562, the City is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 
35% of the assessed value of taxable property in the City. At December 31, 2021, the City 
had not exceeded this statutory limit. 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond 
indentures. The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions, 
including federal arbitrage regulations. 
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Long-Term Debt and Liabilities (Continued) 

Ðefeasance of Ðebts 
ln 2011, the Council defeased $745,000 of General Obligation Bonds by issuing 
$777,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 201 1. This advance refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payment by $35,713 and resulted in an 
economic gain of $85,092. The Council placed the proceeds of the new bonds in an 
irrevocable trust to provide for complete payment of the outstanding balance of the 
defeased bonds on March 1, 2012. 

ln 2016, the Council defeased $3,755,000 of General Obligation Bonds by issuing 
$3,890,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016. This advance refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payment by $129,995 and resulted in an 
economic gain of $162,319. The Council placed the proceeds of the new bonds in an 
irrevocable trust to provide for complete payment of the outstanding balance of the 
defeased bonds on March 1, 2017. 

Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not 
included in the Citys financial statements. 

Capital Leases 
During March 2019, the City entered into a five-year lease agreement as lessee for 
financing a fire truck The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease and has been 
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of 
inception. At December 31, 2021, the cost ofthe vehicle is $947,195 and accumulated 
amortization totaled $115,768. For the year ended December 31, 2021, amortization 
expense related to the leased fire truck totaled $63,146. 

During July 2021, the City entered into a five-year lease agreement as lessee for financing 
a walking excavator. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease and has been 
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of 
inception. At December 31, 2021, the cost ofthe excavator is $300,895 and accumulated 
amortization totaled $15,045. For the year ended December 31, 2021, amortization 
expense related to the excavator totaled $1 5,045. 
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Long-Term Debt and Liabilities (Continued) 

Capitai Leases 
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, 
and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at December 31, 2021: 

Year Ending Governmental 
December 31, Activities 

2022 $ 272,538 
2023 272,538 
2024 64,383 
2025 64,383 
2026 64,383 

Total rvlinimum Lease Payments 738,225 

Less: Amount Representing lnterest (40,327) 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 
 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions and total long-term liabilities 
of the City for the year ended December 31, 2021: 

Balance Balance Due Within 
2l3l2O2O Additions Retirements 121311202l One Year 

Governmental Activities 
General Obligation Bonds 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
Capital Lease 
Compensated Absences 

$ 2,897,000 $ - $ (472,000) $ 2,425,000 $ 380,000 
325,000 - (325,000) - - 
586,25 300,895 (89,248) 697,898 255,503 
627,326 485,28 (445,230) 667,34 376,869 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 4,435,577 $ 786,113 $ (1.43l,478) $ 3,790,212 $ 1.012,372 
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Substantially all employees of the City are members of one of the following statewide 
retirement systems: Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (the Municipal 
System), Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (the Police 
System), or the Firefighters Retirement System of Louisiana (the Firefighters System). 
These systems are cost-sharing multiple employer, defined benefit pension plans 
administered by separate boards of trustees. 

Pertinent information relative to each plan follows: 

General lnformation about the Pension Plans 

Pian DescriptionslBenefits Provided 
The Municipai System 
The Municipal System administers a plan to provide retirement benefits to employees of 
all incorporated villages, towns, and cities within the State which do not have their own 
retirement system and which electto become members ofthe Municipal System. The age 
and years of creditable service required in order for a member to receive retirement 
benefits are established by the plan and vary depending on the members hire date, 
employer and job classification. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed 
if the employee is permanent and works at least 35 hours per week. Plan A members 
who were hired prior to January 1, 201 3 may retire - 1) at any age with 25 years or more 
of creditable service, 2) at age 60 with at least 1 0 years of creditable service, or 3) at any 
age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially 
reduced early benefit. 

For Plan A, in general, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance shall consist of an 
amount equal to 3.0 percent of the members monthly average final compensation 
multiplied by his years ofcreditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined 
in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specific amounts. 

The Police System 
The Police System administers a plan to provide retirement benefits to employees of all 
full-time police officers employed by a municipality in the State of Louisiana and engaged 
in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, providing he or she does not have to 
pay social security and providing he meets the statutory criteria. Benefits provisions are 
authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by R.S. 11:2211-2233. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Plan DescriptionslBenefits Provided (Continued) 
The Police System (Continued) 
Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed 
if the employee is a full-time police officer employed by a municipality. Members who 
were hired prior to January 1, 2013 may retire - 1) at any age with 25 years or more of 
creditable service, 2) at age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service, 3) at age 55 
with at least 12 years of creditable service, or 4) at any age with 20 years of creditable 
sery ice, with an actuarially reduced benefit. For members hired after January 1, 2013, 
eligibility for retirement benefits is based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty 
sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for retirement 1) at 
any age with at least 25 years of creditable service, or 2) at age 55 with at least 12 years 
of creditable service. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for 
retirement - 1) at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service, or 2) at age 55 with 
at least 25 years of creditable service or 3) at age 60 with at least 10 years of service. 
Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for retirement at any age with at least 20 years 
of creditable service, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Members hired prior to January 1, 2013, the benefit rates are 3Y3 percent of the 
average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive 
months or joined months, if service was interrupted) times the number of years of 
creditable service, not to exceed 1 00 percent of final salary. For members hired after 
January 1, 2013, the benefit rates are 3 percent for the Hazardous Duty sub plan and 
2Y2 percent for the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan of the average final compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months orjoined months, if 
service was interrupted) times the number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 
1 00 percent of final salary. 

The Firefighters System 
The Firefighters System is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. 
Membership in the system is a condition of employment for any full-time firefighters who 
earn at least $375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish, or fire 
protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the Firefighters 
System. The system provides retirement benefits for their members. The projections of 
benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be 
provided to current active and inactive employees through the system in accordance with 
benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at 
the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by R.S. 11 : 2251-
11: 2272. The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 
general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for 
more complete information. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Plan DescriptionslBenefits Provided (Continued) 
The Firefiphters System (Continued) 
Any person who becomes an employee as defined in R.S. 1 1 :2252 on and after 
January 1, 1980, shaii become a member as a condition ofemployment. Members in the 
System consist offulltime firefighters, eligible employees ofthe retirement system, or any 
person in a position as defined in the municipal fire and police civil service system that 
earns at least $375 per month, excluding state supplemental pay, and is employed by a 
fire department of any municipality, parish, or fire district of the State of Louisiana, except 
for Orleans Parish and the City of Baton Rouge. 

No person who has attained age fifty or over shall become a member of the system, unless 
the person becomes a member by reason of a merger or unless the system received an 
application for membership before the applicant attained the age of fifty. No person who 
has not attained the age of eighteen years shall become a member of the system. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund 
maintained basically for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political 
subdivisions, and who is receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a member 
of this System, provided the person meets all other requirements for membership. Service 
credit from the retirement system or pension plan from which the member is retired shall 
not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this system, or for any other purpose 
in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this system. 

Disability Benefits 
The Municipal System 
For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to receive a disability benefit if he has at least 
5 years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially 
certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. A disabled member of Plan A 
shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of 45 percent of his final average 
compensation or 3 percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service, whichever is greater or an amount equal to 3 percent of the members 
final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service projected to his 
earliest normal retirement age. 

Survivor Benefits 
The Municipal System 
Survivor benefits are available to the surviving spouse and/or minor children as outlined 
in the statutes, upon the death of any member of Plan A with 5 years or more of credit-
able service, who is not eligible for retirement. For any member of Plan A who is eligible 
for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a surviving spouse will be deemed 
to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse on the 
date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of 
any other survivor benefits. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Survivor Benefits (Continued) 
The Police System 
Upon the death of the active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides 
for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children. Prior to January 1, 2013, 
under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 40 to 60 percent 
of the members average final compensation for the surviving spouse. ln addition, each 
child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10 percent of the members average 
final compensation or $200/month, whichever is greater. For members hired after 
January 1, 2013, under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 
25 to 55 percent of the members average final compensation for the surviving spouse. ln 
addition, each child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10 percent of the members 
average final compensation or $200/ month, whichever is greater. lf the deceased 
member had less than 10 years of service, the beneficiary will receive a refund of 
employee contributions only. 

The Firefighters System 
Benefits shall be payable to the surviving eligible spouse or designated beneficiary of a 
deceased member as specified in R.S. 1 1 :2256(B) and (C). 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan Benefits (DROP) 
The Municipal System 
ln lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any 
member of Plan A who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement 
option plan (DROP) for up to 3 years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation 
in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The 
monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease 
employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP fund. 
lnterest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Upon termination 
of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant 
in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the 
payments into the account, or any other method of payment if approved by the board of 
trustees. lf employment is not terminated at the end of 3 years, payments into the DROP 
fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership in the unicipal 
System. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan Benefits (DROP) (Continued) 
The Police System 
ln Iieu of terminating empioyment and accepting a service retirement aiiowance, any 
member who is eiigible to retire may eiect to participate in the DROP for up to 36 months 
and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in DROP, both the employee and 
employer contributions to the Police System cease. The monthly retirement benefits that 
would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service 
retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP fund. Upon termination of employment prior 
to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in the DROP may 
receive, at his option, a lump sum or a true annuity. lf employment is not terminated at the 
end of 3 years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active 
contribution membership in the Police System. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to 
January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of 
DROP participation at a rate of half of one percent age point below the percentage return 
of the systems investment portfolio. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to 
January 1, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest based on the systems 
investment portfolio return or a money market investment return, which could result in a 
negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

The Firefighters System 
After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a 
member may elect to participate in the DROP for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participation in the DROP, employer and employee contributions 
to the system cease. Upon filing the application for the program, the employees active 
membership in the System is terminated. The monthly retirement benefit that would have 
been payable is paid into the deferred retirement option plan account. The amount to be 
deposited into the DROP account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement 
plan elected by the participant at date of application. Upon termination of employment, a 
participant in the program shall receive, at his option, a lump-sum payment from the 
account or an annuity based on the deferred retirement option plan account balance in 
addition to his regular monthly benefit. lf employment is not terminated at the end of the 
36 months, the participant resumes regular contributions to the system. No payments 
may be made from the deferred retirement option plan account until the participant retires. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

lnitial Benefit Option Plan 
The Police System 
ln 1 999, the State Legisiature authorized the Police System to estabiish an InitiaI Benefit 
Option (IBO) Program. Members eiigible to retire and who do not choose to participate in 
DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, a one-time single sum payment of 
up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement 
benefit for life. lnterest is computed on the balance based on the same criteria as DROP. 

The Firefiphters System 
Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate 
in DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an IBO in an amount up to 36 
months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may 
be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP 
account. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 
The Municipal System 
The system is authorized under state statutes to grant a cost of living increase to members 
who have been retired for at least one year. The increase cannot exceed 2.O% of the 
eligible retirees original benefit for each full calendar year since retirement and may only 
be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of normal 
requirements. State statutes allow the Municipal System to grant an additional cost of 
living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age 65 and above equal to 2.O% 
of the benefit being received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement 
commenced after that date. 

The Police System 
The board of trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) 
computed on the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary, or 
survivors benefit, not to exceed 3.O% in any given year. The board is authorized to 
provide an additional 2.O% COLA, computed on the members original benefit, to all 
regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 year or older on the cut-
off date which determines eligibility. No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be 
eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment until benefits have been received at least 
one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA when authorized shall not be effective 
until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. Members who elect early retirement 
are not eligible for a cost-of-living adjustment until they reach regular retirement age. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Contributions 
The Municipal System 
Contributions for aii members are established by statute at 1 0.0% for Plan A of wages for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. The contributions are deducted from the members salary 
and remitted by the City. 

According to state statute, employer contributions are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the actuarially determined contribution rates 
were 29.50% and 29.28%, of members compensation for Plan A. Contributions to the 
pension plan from the City were $923,465 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

ln accordance with state statutes, the system also receives ad valorem taxes and 
state revenue sharing funds. The additional sources of income are used as employer 
contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are 
not considered special funding situations. iJon-employer contributions are recognized by 
the system and are excluded from pension expense for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

The Police System 
Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state statutes but 
cannot be less than 1 0.0% of the employees earnable compensation excluding overtime 
but including state supplemental pay for the year ended June 30, 2021. The contributions 
are deducted from the members salary and remitted by the City. 

According to state statute, employer contributions are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the actuarially determined contribution 
rates are as follows: 

Non Be low 
Year Ended Hazardous Hazardous Povert 

June 30, 2021 

 

33.75% 
lO.00% 

33.75% 
8.00% 

36.25% 
7.50% 

June 30, 2020 Employer 32.50% 32.50% 35.00% 
Em ployee 10.00% 8.00% 7.50% 

Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $566,304 for the year ended 
December31, 2021. 
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General lnformation about the Pension Plans (Continued) 

Contributions (Continued) 
The Police System (Continued) 
ln accordance with state statutes, the system aiso receives insurance premium taxes as 
additionai empioyer contributions. The tax is considered support from a non- contributing 
entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. The 
additional sources are used as employer contributions and are considered support 
from non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding 
situations. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue during the year ended 
December 31, 2021, and were excluded from pension expense. 

The Firefighters System 
Contributions for all members are established by statute at 1 0.0% for wages above poverty 
for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The contributions are deducted from the 
members salary and remitted by the City. 

According to state statute, employer contributions are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 the actuarially determined contribution rates 
were 32.25% and 29.75%, respectively, of members compensation. Contributions to the 
pension plan from the City were $338,994 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer 
contributions. The tax is considered support from a non-contributing entity and 
appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. Non-employer 
contributions were recognized as revenue during the year ended December 31, 2021, and 
were excluded from pension expense. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
At December 31, 2021, the City reported a combined liability of $8,814,104 for its 
proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabilities (NPL) of the Municipal System, the 
Police System, and the Firefighters System. The amount for each plan was $4,397,206, 
$2,931,779, and $1,485,119, respectively. The NPL for each system was measured as 
of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the NPL was determined 
based on an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Citys proportion of the NPL was 
based on a projection of the Citys long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contribution of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Oufflows of Resources and 
Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
As of June 30, 2021, the most recent measurement date, the Citys proportionate share 
for each system was: 

Municipal Police Firefighters 
System System System 

Citys Proportionate Share 1.580874% 0.549996% 0.419069% 
lncreasefrom PriorYear -0.119131% 0.035959% 0.031920% 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized a total pension expense of 
$1 ,379,403. 

At year end, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred ¡nflows of 
resources related to the Municipal System from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows lnflows 

The Municipal System of Resources of Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1 ,585 $ 50,283 
Changes ofAssumptions 160,690 - 
Net Difference between Projected and Actuai Earnings 

on Pension Plan lnvestments - 1,238,919 
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer 

Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 154,036 305,114 
Employer Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 459,607 - 

Total $ 775,918 $ 1,594,316 

At year end, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred ¡nflows of 
resources related to the Police System from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows lnflows 

The Police System of Resources of Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ - $ 90,290 
Changes ofAssumptions 324,679 83,631 
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings 

on Pension Plan lnvestments - 1,368,910 
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer 

Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 257,461 138,977 
Employer Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 406,644 - 

Total $ 988,784 $ 1,681,808 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Oufflows of Resources and 
Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
At year end, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred ¡nfiows of 
resources related to the Firefighters System from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows lnflows 

The Firefighters System of Resources of Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 21,194 $ 133,367 
ChangesofAssumptions 321,814 - 
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings 

on Pension Plan lnvestments - 901,257 
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer 

Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 215,497 201 ,201 
Employer Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 245,913 - 

Total $ 804,418 $ 1,235,825 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Citys contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2021) totaled $1,1 12,164 ($459,607 for 
the Municipal System, $406,644 for the Police System, and $245,91 3 for the Firefighters 
System). These amounts will be recognized as a reduction of the NPL in the year ending 
December 31, 2022. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred ¡nflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized ¡n pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending Municipal Police Firefighters 
December 31, System System System 

2022 $ (160,729) $ (270,704) $ (167,389) 
2023 (378,495) (1 72,531) (1 56,032) 
2024 (319,403) (184,813) (198,519) 
2025 (419,378) (471 ,620) (266, 1 83) 
2026 - - 62,480 
2027 - - 48,323 

Total $ (1,278,005) $ (1,099,668) $ (677,320) 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuariai methods and assumptions used in determining the totai 
pension liabiiity as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

The Municipal System 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

lnvestment Rate of Return 

Expected Rem aining Service Lives 

lnflation 

Projected Salary lncreases 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments  

June 30, 2021 

Entry Age Normal 

6.85% (Net of lnvestment Expense) 

3 Years 

2.5% per Annum 

1 to 4 Years of Service - 6.4% Plan A 
More than 4 Years of Service - 
4.5% Plan A 

Only those previously granted 

The mortality rate assumption used was verified by combining data from this plan with 
three other statewide plans which have similar workforce composition in order to produce 
a credible experience. The aggregated data was collected over the period July 1, 2013 
through June 30, 2018. 

The data was then assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to 
produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period 
equivalent to the estimated duration of the Municipal Systems liabilities. Annuity values 
calculated based on this mortality were compared to those produced by using a set-back 
of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that the tables would produce 
liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality tables. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using 
a building block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.5% an adjustment 
for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long term rate of return 
was 6.95% as ofJune 30, 2021. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
The Municipal System (Continued) 
Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Municipal 
Systemstarget asset allocation as ofJune 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Target Asset 
Asset Class 14llocation 

F>ublic Equity 53% 
F>ublic Fixed lncome 38% 
PJternatives 9% 

Total 100% 

lnflation 

Expected 14rithmetic Nominal Return 

The Police System 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 

2.31% 
1.65% 
0.39% 

4.35% 

2.60% 

6.95% 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

lnvestment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 

lnflation 

Projected Salary lncreases 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments  

June 30, 2021 

Entry Age Normal 

6.75% (Net of lnvestment Expense) 

4 Years 

2.5% per Annum 

Vary from 12.3% in the first two years 
of service, to 4.7% for years after 

Only those previously granted 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed 
by the prior actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019 and 
review of similar law enforcement mortality. The data was then assigned credibility 
weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This 
mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of 
the Police Systems liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were 
compared to those produced by using a set-back of standard tables. The result of the 
procedure indicated that the tables used would produce liability values approximating the 
appropriate generational mortality tables. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
The Police System (Continued) 
The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension pian investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
long term expected nominal rate of return was 7.29% as of June 30, 2021. 

Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Police 
Systems target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Equity 
Fixed lncome 
PJternative 

Total 

lnflation 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

The Firefighters System 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

lnvestment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 

lnflation 

Projected Salary lncreases 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 

3.47% 
0.59% 
1.01% 

5.07% 

2.22% 

7.29% 

June 30, 2021 

EntryAge Normal 

6.90% (Net of lnvestment Expense) 

7 Years 

2.5% per Annum 

Varyfrom 14.1% inthefirsttwoyears 
of service, to 5.2% with 3 or more 

Only those previously granted 

Target Asset 
Ailocation 

55.50% 
30.50% 
14.00% 

100.00% 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 
The Fireficihters System (Continued) 
The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed 
on pian data for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019. The data was then 
assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current 
levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the 
estimated duration of the Firefighter Systems liabilities. Annuity values calculated based 
on this mortality were compared to those produced by using a set-back of standard tables. 
The result of the procedure indicated that the tables used would produce liability values 
approximating the appropriate generational mortality tables. 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The 
long term expected nominal rate of return was 6.90% as of June 30, 2021. 

Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Firefighters 
Systemstarget asset allocation as ofJune 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Equity 
Fixed lncome 
PJternative 
Other 

Total 

Target Asset 
Allocation 

56.00% 
26.00% 
18.00% 

0.00% 

100.00% 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 

6.42% 
1.25% 
7.80% 
4.17% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Municipal System was 
6.85%, the Police System was 6.75%, and Firefighters System was 6.90%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from 
participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by 
PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of each of the systems actuary. 
Based on those assumptions, each of the systems fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 3. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the NPL to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The foiiowing presents the Citys proportionate share ofthe Net Pension Liability using the 
discount rate, as weii as what the Citys proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabiiity 
wouid be if it were caiculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point Iower or 
one percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% lncrease 

The Municipal System 

Discount Rate 
Citys Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability 

The Police System 

Discount Rate 
Citys Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability 

The Firefiqhters System 

Discount Rate 
Citys Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability  

5.85% 6.85% 7.85% 

$ 6,512,488 $ 4,397,206 $ 2,610,559 

5.75% 6.75% 7.75% 

$ 5,109,628 $ 2,931,779 $ 1,114,011 

5.90% 6.90% 7.90% 

$ 2,849,090 $ 1,485,119 $ 347,581 

Support of Non-Employer Contributing Entities 
Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are 
not in a special funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. 
The City recognizes revenue in an amount equal to their proportionate share of the total 
contributions to the pension plan from these non-employer contributing entities. During 
the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized revenue as a result of support 
received from non-employer contributing entities of $360,592. The Municipal System, 
Police System, and Firefighters System received $117,964, $122,909, and $119,719, 
respectively, for their participation in the Citys Pension and Relief Fund. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
The Municipal System, the Police System, and the Firefighters System issue publicly 
available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the systems. Detailed information about each systems fiduciary net 
position is available in these separately issued financial reports. These reports may be 
obtained by visiting the Louisiana Legislative Auditors website at www.11a.la.gov and 
searching under the Reports section. The Police Systems report may also be found at 
www.lampers.org. The Municipal Systems report may also be found at www.mersla.com. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 
At December 31, 2021, the City had no payables to the pension plans. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions 

Plan Description 
Plan Administration - The City of Covingtons medicai benefits are provided through a fully 
insured medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. 

Management of the Plan is vested in the Plans Board of Trustees (the Board), which 
consists of the Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Director, and the members of 
the Finance Committee of the City Council for the City of Covington. The plan is a single 
-employer defined benefit plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than 
pensions (OPEB) for all permanent full-time employees of the City. 

Plan Membership - At December 31, 2021, the Plans membership consisted of the 
following: 

lnactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries 
Currently Receiving Benefits 30 

Active Plan Members 131 

T otal  

Benefits Provided - The employees are covered by one of three retirement systems: first, 
the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility 
provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of 
service; second, the Municipal Police Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement 
eligibility provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 years of 
service; or, age 55 and 12 years ofservice; and, third, the Firefighters Retirement System 
of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at 
any age; age 50 and 20 years of service; or, age 55 and 12 years of service. 

Contributions - The City of Covington has the authority to establish and amend the 
contribution requirements of the City of Covington and the plan members. Plan members 
are not required to contribute to their post-employment benefits costs. 

l nvestments 
lnvestment Policy - The OPEB Trust was funded on December 7, 2020. As of 
December 31, 2021 the funds were invested as seen below. The board has selected 
Reliant Trust as an OEPB investment advisor. An investment policy has been established; 
however, the asset allocation policy will be determined once the investment advisor has 
been selected: 

Asset Class 
Target Asset 

1location 
 

 

55% 
45% 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (Continued) 

lnvestments (Continued) 

Concentrations - The Trust has over 5% invested ¡n the foiiowing funds, U.S. Treasury 
Bonds, 1O%, and FNMA, 18%. 

Actual Asset 
Asset Class 11location 

Agency Bonds 22.8% 
Corporate Bonds 65.O% 
Cas h/Reserves 2.7% 
U.S. Treasury Bonds 9.5% 

Rate ofReturn - For the year ended December 31, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate 
of return on investments, net of investment expense, was -1.O1%. The money-weighted 
rate of return expresses ¡nvestment performance, net of ¡nvestment expense, adjusted for 
the changing amounts actually ¡nvested. 

The components of the net OPEB liability of the City of Covington at December 31, 2021, 
were as follows: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Net OPEB Liability 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 
Total OPEB Liability 

$ 9,983,123 
1 ,083,604 

$ 8,899,519 

1O.85% 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of January 1, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods 
¡ncluded in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

lnflation 

Projected Salary lncreases 

Discount Rate 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

2.O% 

3.O%, ¡ncluding inflation 

2.12% annually 

5.5% annually 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (Continued) 

lnvestments (Continued) 
The RP-2000 Tabie without projection with 50/50 percent unisex biend has been used. 
Projected future mortality improvement has not been used since it is our opinion that this 
tabie contains a substantial conservative margin for the population involved in this 
valuation. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2021 valuation were based on 
the results of ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from October 1, 2006 to 
December 31, 2021 in addition to the Office of Group Benefits (OGB) assumptions. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using 
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates 
of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of 
December 31, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Domestic Equity 
Corporate Bonds 
Certificates of Deposit 
Cash 

Long-Te rm 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

6.0% 
5.0% 
1.0% 
O.0% 

This plan is a defined benefit OPEB plan which meets the requirements of paragraph 4 of 
GASB Statement No. 75 as ofthe beginning ofthe fiscal yearended December 31, 2021. 
However, a trust was established during 201 8 and an initial contribution was made during 
that year funding and investment policies had not yet been fully implemented. Therefore, 
the discount rate was 2.06%, which is the value of the Bond Buyers 20 year General 
obligation municipal bond index as of December 31, 2021, the measurement date at the 
end of the applicable measurement period. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4. Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (Continued) 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

lncreases (Decreases) 
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Total OPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 

Balances at December 31, 2020 $ 11,978,370 $ 1,094,907 $ 10,883,463 

Service Cost 
lnterest Cost at 2.06% 
Difference between Expected and 

Actuai Experience 
Employer Contributions Trust 
Net Investment Income (Loss) 
Changes ofAssumptions 
Benefit Payments 

(a)From Trust 
(b)Direct 

Ad mi ni strative Expense 
(a)From Trust 
(b)Direct 

345,877 
257,608 

(3,465,904) 

l ,090,383 

(223,21 1) 

(6,660) 

(4,643) 

345,877 
257,608 

(3,465,904) 

6,660 
1 ,090,383 

(223,21 1) 

4,643 

Net Change (1,995,247) (11,303) (1,983,944) 

Balances at December 31, 2021 $ 9,983,123 $ 1,083,604 $ 8,899,519 

Sensitivity of the !Vet OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following 
represents the net OPEB liability of the City of Covington, as well as what the City of 
Covingtons net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower (1.06%) or one percentage point higher (3.06%) than the 
current discount rate: 

Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% lncrease 

(1.06%) (2.06%) (3.06%) 

Net OPEB Liability $ 12,084,874 $ 8,889,519 $ 5,372,694 
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Note 4. Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (Continued) 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued) 
Sensitivity of the fVet OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following represents the net OPEB Iiability of the City of Covington, as well as what the 
City of Covingtons net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health care cost 
trend rates that are one percentage point lower (4.5%) or one percentage point higher 
(6.5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

l% Decrease Ultimate Trend l% lncrease 
(4.5%) (5.5%) (6.5%) 

Net OPEB Liability $ 5,377,396 $ 8,889,519 $ 12,048,978 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB 
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City recognized OPEB expense of $485,152. 
At December 31, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings 

on OPEB Plan lnvestments 
Changes in Assumptions/lnputs 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows lnflows 

of Resources of Resources 

$ 656,067 $ 3,043,015 

21,541 2,932 
3,514,671 590,264 

Total $ 4,192,279 $ 3,636,211 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the OPEB plan for the year ended December 31, 2021 will be recognized in the 
expense as follows: 

Year Ending 
December31, ount 

2022 $ 101,695 
2023 98,083 
2024 92,367 
2025 93,344 
2026 91,720 

Thereafter 78,859 

Total $ 556,068 

77 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 5. Risk Management 

The City has contracted with a commerciai ¡nsurance company to provide liability 
coverage for general acts, law enforcement, and pubiic officials errors and omissions. The 
policy requires the City to pay for claims and costs up to $25,000 with maximum aggregate 
payments limited to $200,000. At December 31, 2021, no significant claims were owed 
and no liability has been recorded. 

Note 6. Claims and Judgements 

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits, which are currently pending. The City persists 
¡n its vigorous defense of these lawsuits and maintains that the defenses available should 
shield the City from liability or, at a minimum, preclude the amount of damages sought by 
the plaintiffs. The majority of the cases are covered by insurance and, in the opinion of 
legal counsel for the City the ultimate resolution of this litigation will not result ¡n a 
significant liability to the City. 

Note 7. Tax Abatement 

st. Tammany Parish (the Parish) negotiates property tax abatement agreements on the 
Citys behalf on an ¡ndividual basis. Each agreement was negotiated for a variety of 
economic development purposes, including business relocation, retention, and expansion. 
The City has tax abatement agreements with four entities as of December 31, 2021: 

A manufacturing company, through an agreement negotiated with the lndustrial 
Tax Exemption (ITE) program, has property assessed at $319,480 with exempt 
taxes of approximately $38,000. The ITE program may be granted to 
manufacturers located within the Parish. The ITE program abates, up to ten years, 
local property taxes on a manufacturers new investment and annual capitalized 
additions related to the manufacturing sale. 

• A hotel, through a Restoration Tax Abatement program, has property assessed at 
$450,000 with exempt taxes of approximately $54,000. The Restoration Tax 
Abatement may be grant ed to any commercial property owners or homeowners 
located within the Parish who expand, restore, ¡mprove or develop an existing 
structure in an economic development or historic district. 

A manufacturing company, through an agreement negotiated with the ITE 
program, has property assessed at $58,170 with exempt taxes of approximately 
$7,000. The ITE program may be granted to manufacturers located within the 
Parish. The ITE program abates, up to ten years, local property taxes on a 
manufacturers new investment and annual capitalized additions related to the 
manufacturing sale. 

The City ¡s not subject to any tax abatement agreements entered ¡nto by other 
governmental entities other than the Parish. The Parish has not made any commitments 
as part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 8. Restricted Assets 

General Obligation Bond Restricted Assets (Debt Service) 
An ordinance authorizing the issuance of $1,240,000 General Obligation Bonds dated 
February 1, 2002, which were defeased on November 2, 2011 for the issuance of 
$777,000 General Obligation Bonds, along with $5,285,000 General Obligation Bonds 
dated January 1, 2007, which were defeased on August 2, 2016 for the issuance of 
$3,890,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, together provide for certain restrictions 
on assets of the General Fund. The bond funding requirements provide that upon receipt 
of the proceeds of the ad valorem tax, the issuer has the responsibility for the deposit of 
such receipts in a debt service fund and such proceeds will be used to pay the principal 
and interest of the bonds payments. 

Garden of Pines (Perpetual Care) 
An ordinance requires the establishment of a trust responsible for the general 
maintenance and care of the mausoleum. The original deposit of $24,955 must be kept 
intact in an income earning trust and the income can be used to make disbursements of 
$100 per month to the City for the care and maintenance of the mausoleum. 

Note 9. lnterfund Transfers 

Transfers between funds consist primarily of sales tax revenues transferred out of the 
General Fund to the particular funds for which the sales tax revenue is to be used for debt 
service and capital outlay expenditures: 

Transfers ln Transfers Out 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 

A3 Sales Tax Fund 
State and Federal Grants Fund 

Debt Service Funds 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility Fund 

Total 

$ 21,583,535 $ 14,935,523 

1,395,184 
5,289,854 

325,795 - 

21 ,909,330 21 ,620,561 

288,769 

$ 21,909,330 $ 21,909,330 
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Note 10. Equity in Pooled Cash 

To the extent possible, cash is pooled into common pooled accounts in order to maximize 
investment opportunities. Each fund whose funds are deposited in the pooled cash 
accounts has equity therein. Pooled cash at December 31, 2021 is as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 

A3 Sales Tax Fund 
State and Federal Grants Fund 
Drug Forfeiture 
Tree Mitigation Fund 

Capital Projects Funds 
Water Capacity 
Waste Water Capacity 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility Fund 

Total 

Amount 

$ (10,721,367) 

6,296,615 
(2,621,914) 

34,187 
8,611 

112,249 
523,246 

(6,368,373) 

6,368,373 

$ 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 11. Due to/from Other Funds 

The primary purpose of inter-fund receivables/payables is to loan funds from the General 
Fund to individual funds to cover current expenditures. The due to/from other funds are 
short-term receivables or payables resulting from the normal course of the Citys 
operations. lndividual fund balances due from/to other funds at December 31, 2021, are 
as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 

A3 Sales Tax Fund 
State and Federal Grants Fund 

Debt Service Funds 
General Obligation Debt Service Fund 

Permanent Fund 
Garden of Pines Permanent Fund 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility Fund 

Total  

lnterfund lnterfund 
Receivables Payables 

$ 50,038 $ 22,000 

- 2,652 
- 1,366 

- 3,000 

- 32,403 

50,038 61,421 

22,000 10,617 

$ 72,038 $ 72,038 

Note 12. lnternal Balances 

ln the Government-wide statement of net position, the balances of the due to/from other 
funds (Note 12) and the equity in pooled cash (Note 11) are combined into a single line, 
internal balances. The following is the reconciliation for the amount shown on the 
statement of net position for internal balance at December 31, 2021: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Due from Other Funds 
Due to Other Funds 
(Deficit) Equity in Pooled Cash 

Total 

$ 50,038 $ 22,000 
(61,421) (10,617) 

(6,368,373) 6,368,373 

$ (6,379,756) $ 6,379,756 
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Note 13. FHA Revolving Loan Fund 

ln prior years, the City was awarded grant funds under the Rural Business Enterprise 
Grant (CFDA #1O.769) for the purpose of making loans to area businesses at low interest 
rates to promote economic development. The grant funds were to form a revolving loan 
fund where notes would be collected and new loans would be made. 

The following is a recap of the cash flows of the revolving loan fund which is accounted 
for in the Citys General Fund: 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31, 2020 

Deletions 
New Loans lssued 

Additions 
Principal Payments on Notes 
lnterest Payments on Notes 
lnterest on Cash Account 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31, 2021 

Notes Receivable - December 31, 2021  

$ 248,297 

4,116 
54 
62 

$ 252,529 

$ 

Note 14. Operating Leases 

The City leases copiers, equipment, and storage space from multiple parties. Future 
minimum lease payments due under these leases are $18,352 for the year ending 
December 31, 2022. The City also leases parking lots for public use on a month-to-month 
and yearly basis. There are no future minimum payments noted. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Required Other Postemployment Benefits Supplementary lnformation 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Schedule of lnvestment Returns 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Annual ney Weighted Rate of Retum, Net of 

lnvestmentExpense -1.O1% 2.79% O.61% O.00% 

Source: Regions Weaith Platform (RWP) 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 

Schedule of Citys Contributions 

Actuariaily Determined Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution 

Employer Contributions to Trust 
Employer-Paid Retiree Premiums 

Total Contributions 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Covered-Employee Payroll 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

$ 839,878 $ 782,875 $ 561,104 $ 641,772 

- - - 1,050,000 

223,211 213,894 210,381 116,941 

223,21 1 213,894 210,381 1 , 166,941 

$ 616,667 $ 568,981 $ 350,723 $ (525,169) 

$ 5,877,433 $ 5,468,435 $ 5,258,1 10 $ 5,376,452 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
Covered-Employee Payroli 3.80% 3.91% 4.00% 21.70% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 

available. 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Citys Contributions to Pension Plans 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

The Municipal System 

Contractually Required Contribution 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually 
Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Cits Covered Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll  

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

$ 923,465 $ 899,612 $ 835,171 $ 771,786 $ 717,787 $ 625,486 $ 557,105 $ 539,797 

923,465 899,612 835,171 771,786 717,787 625,486 557,105 539,797 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

$ 3,245,402 $ 3,143,685 $ 3,009,624 $ 3,039,066 $ 3,024,599 $ 2,940,646 $ 2,820,787 $ 2,804,436 

28.45% 28.62% 27.75% 25.40% 23.73% 21.27% 19.75% 19.25% 

The Police System 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 566,304 $ 502,108 $ 501,345 $ 552,967 $ 526,234 $ 540,210 $ 490,167 $ 445,036 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually 
Required Contribution 566,304 502,108 501,345 552,967 526,234 540,210 490,167 445,036 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Citys Covered Payroll $ 1,588,391 $ 1,515,453 $ 1,548,049 $ 1,755,544 $ 1,681,942 $ 1,561,694 $ 1,419,730 $ 1,275,014 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 35.65% 33.13% 32.39% 31.50% 31.29% 34.59% 34.53% 34.90% 

The Firefighters System 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 338,994 $ 295,717 $ 250,782 $ 262,537 $ 251,289 $ 258,903 $ 272,059 $ 280,598 

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually 
Required Contribution 338,994 295,717 250,782 262,537 251,289 258,903 272,059 280,598 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Citys Covered Payroll $ 963,848 $ 982,734 $ 923,122 $ 990,706 $ 1,042,519 $ 986,254 $ 963,150 $ 975,685 

Contributions as a Percentage ofCovered Payroll 35.17% 30.09% 27.17% 26.50% 24.10% 26.25% 28.25% 28.76% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Position Liability 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

The Municipal System 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Citys Portiori of the Net Pension Liability .580874% .700005% .577123% .638340% .685030% .602460% .643521 % .668320% 

Citys Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability $ 4,397,206 $ 7,349,817 $ 6,590,263 $ 6,783,826 $ 7,049,195 $ 6,568,003 $ 5,870,914 $ 4,281,651 

Citys Covered Payroll $ 3,262,633 $ 3,245,402 $ 2,913,696 $ 2,961,267 $ 3,030,352 $ 2,862,540 $ 2,805,094 $ 2,689,407 

Citys Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
as a Percentage of its ofCovered Payroll 134.77% 226.47% 226.18% 229.09% 232.62% 229.45% 209.29% 159.20% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 
Total Pension Liability 77.82% 64.52% 64.68% 63.90% 62.50% 62.11% 66.18% 76.94% 

The Police System 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Citys Portion ofthe Net Pension Liability O.549996% O.514037% O.507229% O.577690% O.578550% O.560620% O.568431% O.536795% 

Citys Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability $ 2,931,779 $ 4,750,900 $ 4,606,489 $ 4,883,784 $ 5,050,978 $ 5,254,579 $ 4,453,063 $ 3,358,234 

Citys Covered Payroll $ 1,863,216 $ 1,588,391 $ 1,584,018 $ 1,704,795 $ 1,626,838 $ 1,503,506 $ 1,347,463 $ 1,292,945 

Citys Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
as a Percentage of its ofCovered Payroll 157.35% 299.lO% 290.81% 286.47% 310.48% 349.49% 330.48% 259.74% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage ofthe 
Total Pension Liability 84.09% 70.94% 71.00% 70.10% 70.10% 66.04% 70.73% 75.lO% 

The Firefighters System 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Citys Portion of the Net Pension Liability O.419069% 0.387149% 0.378677% O.434260% O.426240% 0.433230% 0.459625% 0.484880% 

Citys Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability $ 1,485,119 $ 2,683,542 $ 2,371,241 $ 2,497,915 $ 2,443,120 $ 2,833,709 $ 2,480,648 $ 2,157,674 

Citys Covered Payroll $ 963,127 $ 963,848 $ 913,291 $ 1,048,998 $ 995,201 $ 976,837 $ 976,788 $ 947,814 

Citys Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
as a Percentage of its ofCovered Payroll 154.20% 278.42% 259.64% 238.12% 245.49% 290.09% 253.96% 227.65% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage ofthe 
Total Pension Liability 86.78% 72.61% 74.00% 74.80% 73.50% 68.16% 62.70% 65.00% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ended. 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost $ 345,877 $ 360,16l $ 2,866 $ 239,287 
lnterest Cost 257,608 26 ,077 283,358 254,560 
Difference between Expected and 

Actual Experience (3,465,904) 605,657 284,397 (4, 3) 
Changes in Assumptions ,090,383 ,330,03 2,049,743 (804,905) 
Benefit Payments (223,2) (23,984) (20,38) (6,94) 

Net Change in OPEB Liability (,995,247) 2,343,04 2,68,983 (442,2) 

Total OPEB Liability- Beginning ,978,370 9,635,356 7,06,373 7,458,485 

Total OPEB Liability- Ending (a) 9,983,23 ,978,370 9,635,356 7,06,373 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions - Employer - - - ,050,000 
Net lnvestment lncome (6,660) 34,004 4,467 - 
Administrative Expense (4,643) (3,543) (2) - 

Net Change in Plan FiduciaryNet Position (,303) 30,46 4,446 ,050,000 

Plan FiduciaryNet Position - Beginning ,094,907 ,064,446 ,0S0,000 - 

Plan FiduciaryNet Position - Ending (b) ,083,604 ,094,907 ,064,446 ,0S0,000 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b) $ 8,899,519 $ 10,883,463 $ 8,570,910 $ 5,966,373 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
oftheTotalOPEB Liability 0.85% 9.4% .0S% 4.96% 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 5,877,433 $ 5,468,435 $ 5,258,0 $ 5,376,452 

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of 
Covered-Employee Payroll S .42% 99.02% 63.00% 0.97% 

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefit Changes. There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended December 3, 202. 

Changes in Assumptions. The following discount rate was used in each period: 
2/3/208 - 4.0% 
2/3/209 - 2.74% 
2/3/2020 - 2.2% 
2/3/202 -2.06% 

This schedule is intended to show information for 0 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Varianee with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budget Budget Actual (Untavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes 
Sales Taxes $ 11,055,667 $ 11,055,667 $ 12,336,113 $ 1,280,446 
Property Taxes 2,562,472 2,562,472 2,731,20 168,728 

Franchise Taxes 794,500 794,500 768,835 (25,665) 
Total Taxes 14,412639 14,412,639 15,836,148 1,423,509 

Licenses and Permits 
lnsurance 

Occupational 
Building 
Uquor and Beer 
Filmng 

Total Licenses and Permits 

Other Revenues 
Other Revenues 
Legal Claims 
LWCC 

Donations 
Accident Reports 
Sale of Surplus 
NSF Fees 
Code Enforcement Uens 

Total Other ReveruJes 

Fines and Forfeitures 
Court Fines 
DWI Fines 
City Court Fee 

Total Fines and Forfeitures 

Charges for Services 
Greater Covington Center Rentals 
Greater Covington Center Leases 

Basketball Registration 
Baseball Registration 
Football Registration 
Zoning Revenue 
Park Rental 
Rent lncome 

Cemetery Plot Sale 
Event Ticket Sales 
Old Firehouse Rent 

Total Charges for Servces 

lntergovemmental Revenues 
Fire lnsurance Premium Tax 
School Resource Officer 
District Court Wilness Fees 
Beer Tax 

Crossing Guard 
Total lntergovemmental Revenues 

hterest and Penaties 
lnterest on CDs 
lnterest on LAIAP 

Penalties 
Total lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues  

680,000 680,000 708,543 28,543 

430,000 430,000 444,578 14,578 
150,000 150,000 409,666 259,666 
20,000 20,000 20,565 565 

- - 2,600 2,600 
1,280,000 1,280,000 1,585,952 305,952 

15,000 15,000 116,589 101,589 
- - 5,509 5,509 

120,000 120,000 116,876 (3,124) 

16,000 16,000 8,000 (8,000) 
7,000 7,000 9,874 2,874 

20,000 20,000 33,393 13,393 
75 75 25 (50) 

5,000 5,000 975 (4,025) 

183,075 183,075 291,241 108,166 

1,000 1,000 1,537 537 
25,300 25,300 57,555 32,255 

9,000 9,000 16,561 7,561 

35,300 35,300 75,653 40,353 

65,000 65,000 59,025 (5,975) 
4,800 4,800 4,800 - 

2,000 2,000 245 (1,755) 
2,000 2,000 525 (1,475) 
2,000 2,000 550 (1,450) 

15,000 15,000 19,034 4,034 
5,000 5,000 14,725 9,725 
8,300 8,300 16,998 8,698 

1,200 1,200 1,600 400 
20,000 20,000 1,675 18,177 
10,000 10,000 23,300 36,354 

135,300 135,300 142,477 66,733 

39,000 39,000 38,996 (4) 
91,100 91,100 96,700 5,600 
1,000 1,000 - (1,000) 

50,000 50,000 57,431 4,596 

8,000 8,000 4,223 9,192 
189,100 189,100 197,350 18,384 

62,000 62,000 14,690 (47,310) 
50,000 50,000 1,968 (48,032) 

58,000 58,000 31,896 (26,104) 
170,000 170,000 48,554 (121,446) 

16,405,414 16,405,414 18,177,375 1,841,651 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Expenditures 

General Govemment Administration - Council 

Salaries 

Payroll RelaCed Benetlts and Taxes 

AdverCising 

Contract Services 

Dues and Subscriptions 

Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 

Office Supplies, Goneral, and Uniforms 

Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 

Repairs and Maintenance 

Operating Lease 

Service Charge and Fees 

Telephone - Cellular/Communication 

Small Computer Equipment 

Total Pministration Council 

General Government Administration - Mayor 

Salaries 

Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 

Contract SVC 

Dues and Subscriptions 

Meetings and Conventions 

Vehicle Allowance 

Small Office Fumishings and Equipment 
Office SuDolies 
Cell Phone 

Total Administration Mayor 

General Government Administration - Legal 

Professional Services 

General Govemment - Administration 

Salaries 

Payroll Related Beneflts and Taxes 

Professional Servmes 

Repairs and Maintenance 

lnsurance 

Office Supplies 

Contract Services 

Service Charges and Fees 

AdverCising 

Dues and Subsonptions 

Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 

Computer Equipment 

Election Expense 

Gasoline 

Rent 

Operating Leases 

Small Computer Equipment 

Meetings and Conventions 

Telephone 

Land lmprovements 

Sheriffs Fees 

Government Fees - Assessor 

Bank Charges 

Total Administration  

134,000 135,185 122,765 12,420 

60,335 60,715 67,128 (6,413) 

8,000 8,000 14,319 (6,319) 

13,500 13,500 5,802 7,698 

500 500 415 85 

13,000 13,000 3,868 9,132 

4,300 4,300 1,562 2,738 

500 1,000 - 1,000 

7,700 7,700 6,516 1,184 

2,520 2,520 1,856 664 

500 500 - 500 

2,880 2,880 3,060 (180) 

1,250 1,250 20 1,230 

248,985 251,050 227,311 23,739 

90,669 90,669 90,990 (321) 

40,590 40,590 37,640 2,950 

1,000 1,000 240 760 
- - 428 (428) 

8,000 8,000 4,696 3,304 

9,000 9,000 9,000 - 

500 500 - 500 
3.000 3.000 - 3.000 
1,200 1,200 1,196 4 

153,959 153,959 144,190 9,769 

144,800 144,800 88,589 56,211 

695,200 650,651 666,659 (16,008) 

341,930 318,760 302,904 15,856 

179,950 215,039 203,228 11,811 

68,700 52,067 47,633 4,434 

75,300 94,300 91,356 2,944 

66,500 34,500 20,501 13,999 

49,100 154,969 106,735 48,234 

4,500 4,500 - 4,500 

12,000 12,000 9,071 2,929 

6,200 6,200 2,323 3,877 

9,600 14,929 4,956 9,973 

12,200 9,936 - 9,936 

15,000 - - - 

300 300 219 81 

9,000 9,000 15,701 (6,701) 

22,520 22,520 19,866 2,654 

17,150 17,150 6,903 10,247 

20,000 16,500 8,960 7,540 

29,000 25,000 20,684 4,316 

- 40,033 - 40,033 

138,040 138,040 164,397 (26,357) 

6,100 6,100 12,025 (5,925) 

34,500 34,500 32,469 2,031 

1,812,790 1,876,994 1,736,590 140,404 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

General Government - Engineering 
Salary 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 

Professional Services 
Office Supplies 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Dues and Subscriptions 

lnsurance 
Repairs arid teintenance 
Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 
Small Computer Equipment 

Telephone 
Gasoline 
Operating Leases 

Total Engineering 

Goneral Government - Plannirig and Zoning 
Salaries 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 

Professional Services 
Office Supplies 
Contract Services 
Advertising 

Training and Education 
Repairs and Maintence 
Operating Lease 
Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 

Small Computer Equipment 
Telephone 
Dues and Subscriptions 

Total Planning and Zoning 

General Government - Code Enforcement 
Salaries 

Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Professional Services 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Contract Services 
Gasoline 
lnsurance 

Telephone 
Office Supplies 
Repairs and Maintenance 

Computer Equipment 
Small Office Furniahings and Equipment 
Operating Leases 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Code Enforcement 

Goneral Government - Building Permits 
Salaries 

Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
lnsurance 

Office Supplies 
Operating Leases 
Telephone 
Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 

Small Computer Equipment 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Dues and Subscnptions 
Gasoline 

Total Building Permits  

161,600 64,715 153,367 11,348 
58,300 59,464 73,695 (14,231) 

4,700 14,192 5,096 (904) 
6,475 6,475 2,200 4,275 
2,000 2,000 50 ,850 

650 650 - 650 

2,200 2,200 1,520 680 
4,900 4,900 784 4,116 

230 230 225 5 
3,840 3,840 - 3,840 

,000 1,000 726 274 
2,000 2,000 791 ,209 
3,840 3,840 3,676 164 

261,735 265,506 252,230 13,276 

116,900 143,999 114,956 29,043 
54,690 66,584 52,782 13,802 

9,500 9,128 4,264 4,864 
6,500 6,500 ,324 5,176 
8,000 6,004 10,254 5,750 

10,000 0,000 6,488 3,512 

4,000 4,000 119 3,881 
2,000 2,000 128 1,872 
2,700 2,700 2,146 554 
1,350 1,350 151 1,199 

2,710 2,710 - 2,710 
2,800 2,800 2,763 37 
2,000 2,000 838 1,62 

223,150 269,775 196,213 73,562 

70,450 71,488 38,808 32,680 

23,050 23,415 21,369 2,046 
2,500 2,464 982 1,482 

750 750 - 750 
30,000 30,000 6,835 23,165 

700 700 461 239 
,200 1,200 1,079 121 

1,100 1,100 528 572 
500 500 81 319 

1,500 1,500 158 ,342 

420 420 - 420 
150 150 76 74 

2,100 2,100 1,815 285 
750 750 - 750 

135,170 136,537 72,292 64,245 

104,800 106,891 115,677 (8,786) 

58,160 58,858 58,923 (65) 
66,500 66,128 63,184 2,944 

3,250 3,250 916 2,334 
,200 1,200 ,079 21 

8,000 8,000 5,330 2,670 
2,700 2,700 1,96 784 

900 900 840 60 
1,150 1,50 151 999 

940 940 - 940 
2,000 2,000 - 2,000 
1,000 1,000 450 550 
1,200 1,200 495 705 

251,800 254,217 248,961 5,256 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

General Government - Trailhead 
Salaries 
Payroll Related Benetits and Taxes 

Contract Services 
Gasoline 
Insurance 
Office Supplies 

Repairs and Maintenance 
Utilities 
Smali Office Furnishings and Equipment 
Building 

SmalI Tools and Equipment 
Total Trailhead 

General Government - Bogue Falaya Park 

Salaries 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Protassional Services 
Gasoline 

lnsurance 
Office Supplies 
Utilities 

Repairs and intenance 
Telephone 
Small Tools and Equipment 
Materials and Supplies 

Computer Equipment 
Contract Services 
Land lmprovements 
Equipment 

Total Bogue Falaya Park 

General Government - Firehouse Event Center 
lnsurance 

Office Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and Maintenance 
SmalI Office Furnishings and Equipment 
Contract Services 

Wterials and Supplies 
Total Firehouse Event Center 

General Government - Greater Covington Center 

Salaries 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Contract Labor 

Contract Services 
lnsurance 
Bank Charges and Fees 
Office Supplies 

Office Furnishings and Equipment 
Gasoline 
Repairs and Ftentenance 
Small Tools and Equipment 

Materials and Supplies 
Telephone 
Small Computer Equipment 
Small Office Furnishings and Equipmerit 

Meetings, Trainings, end Conventions 
Utilities 
Operating Leases 
Building 

Total Greater Covington Center 

Total Goneral Government  

60,040 62,179 58,085 4,094 
28090 28,465 26,929 1,536 

2,930 3,392 1,511 1,881 
200 200 - 200 

9,840 9,840 10,585 (745) 
4,000 5,280 6,250 (970) 

21,500 12,575 12492 83 
9,000 9,000 7,410 1,590 
1,500 1,500 1494 6 

- 18,945 - 18,945 

2,930 2,930 1,990 940 
140,030 154,306 126,746 27,560 

33,700 34,738 35044 (306) 
21,380 21,755 20917 838 

240 64 32 32 
1,000 1,000 1225 (225) 

4,000 4,000 3,431 569 
3,000 3,000 4,660 (1,660) 
3,400 3,400 6,291 (2,891) 

17,000 35,915 29217 6,698 
1,200 1,200 1,040 160 
2,000 3,500 3,492 8 
5,000 5,000 5,012 (12) 

210 210 - 210 
1,200 1,200 1,030 170 

28,000 32,000 - 32,000 

121,330 146982 111,391 35,591 

8,072 8072 8,650 (578) 

1,000 - - - 
2,500 2,500 1,566 934 

13,000 2,170 2,985 (815) 
1,500 - - - 
5,000 5,000 2,764 2,236 

1,000 1,000 886 114 
32,072 18.742 16,851 1.891 

131,120 133,375 108,250 25,125 
69,050 69,758 59,528 10,230 
32,000 23,700 19,963 3,737 

8,930 8,192 6866 1,326 
47,220 47,220 40752 6,468 

- - 10 (10) 
12,000 12,415 13703 (1,288) 

1,000 1,000 - 1,000 
600 600 877 (277) 

56,700 29,936 29,097 839 
3,000 5,300 5,468 (168) 

4,000 4,080 4538 (458) 
2,000 2,000 1,808 192 
3,490 3,490 300 3,190 
3,000 5,300 4,533 767 

- - 42 (42) 
55,900 55,900 58,991 (3,091) 

900 900 499 401 
- 10,000 - 10,000 

430,910 413,166 355,225 57,941 

3,956,731 4,086,034 3,576,589 509,445 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Pubtc Safety - Police 
Salaries 
Payroll Related Benetits and Taxes 

MEterials and Supplies 
Gasoline 
Insurance 
Repairs and Maintenance 

Utilities 
Office Supplies 
MEetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Small Office Furnishings and Equiprnent 

Small Computer Equiprnent 
Professional Services 
Small Tools and Equipment 
Rent 

Contract Services 
Dues and Subscriptions 
Advertising 

Computer Equipment 
Operating Leases 
Vehicle Ajlowance 
Telephone 

Building 
Vehicles 

Total Public Safety - Police 

Public Safety - Fire 
Salaries 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Bank Charges and Fees 

Utilities 
Small Tools and Equipment 
Small Computer Equipment 
Small Office Furnishings and Equipment 
lnsurance 

Repairs and MEintenance 
Gasoline 
Office Supplies 
Operating Leases 

Materials and Supplies 
Garbage Collection 
Vehicles 

Telephone 
Contract Seraces 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Radios and Pagers 

Equipment 
Dues and Subscriptions 
Vehicle PJlowance 
Building 

Professional Services 
Total Public Safety - Fire 

public Worl 

Salaries 
Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Professional Services 
Bank Charges and Fees 

Telephone 
Utilities 
Repairs and MEintenance 
Materials and Supplies 

Rent 
Gasoline 
Small Office Fumishings and Equipment 

Small Cornputer Equipment 

See independent auditors report. 

2,106,482 2,158,685 2,316,174 (157,489) 
1,439,465 1 456,070 1,351 947 104, 123 

10,000 5,500 4,762 738 
55,000 71,666 87,790 (16,124) 

204,500 224,940 225,791 (851) 
69,000 73,700 57,556 16,144 

31,800 28,400 28,213 187 
58,300 57,175 50,981 6,194 
80,000 45,200 40,342 4,858 
5,000 581 580 

30,350 37,050 32,706 4,344 
108,416 101,946 97,640 4,306 
188,727 157,582 112,566 45,016 

- 25,200 21,000 4,200 

267,658 275,628 302,135 (26,507) 
3,000 3,000 2,264 736 
1,000 1,000 - 1,000 

- 47,315 - 47,315 
6,360 6,360 7,213 (853) 
7,200 7,200 7,200 - 

46,000 46,000 45,014 986 

- 10,000 - 10,000 
- 125,144 - 125,144 

4,718,258 4,965,342 4,791,874 173,468 

1 175,300 1, 198,952 1 ,259,425 (60,473) 
836,980 845,294 803,868 41 ,426 

- - 22 (22) 

18,800 18,800 16,687 2,113 
49,400 56,400 53,169 3,231 

6,300 6,300 474 5,826 
2,000 1,769 1,769 - 

70,000 70,000 59,258 10,742 

84,700 82,568 65,661 16,907 
25,000 22,500 17,822 4,678 
23,000 19,415 19,282 133 
1,500 1,500 1,558 (58) 

12,000 12,000 12,775 (775) 
500 - - - 

125,000 125,000 - 125,000 

14,800 14,800 12,567 2,233 
82,804 81,387 70,700 10,687 
35,600 39,003 37,792 1,211 
16,014 15,976 14,536 1,440 

8,500 8,500 - 8,500 
3,800 3,800 3,271 529 
7,200 7,200 7,200 - 

15,000 15,000 - 15,000 

47,350 47,350 48,351 (1,001) 
2,661,548 2.693,514 2,506,187 187,327 

1,003,942 972,078 866,154 105,924 
632,430 643,330 516,380 126,950 
215,660 209,668 175,847 33,821 

- - 34 (34) 

21,200 22,700 20,228 2,472 
260,800 260,800 256,892 3,908 
173,000 118,000 69,713 48,287 
150,000 240,000 161,673 78,327 

1,500 1,500 - 1,500 
70,000 70,000 72,136 (2,136) 
4,600 4,600 2,129 2,471 

10,000 10,000 875 9,125 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Insurance 
Office Supplies 
Contract Services 

Small Toois and Equipment 
Contract Labor 
Garbage Collection 

Dues and Subscriptions 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Operating Leases 
Drainage 

Ditch Grading 
Engineering Fees 
Equipment 
Streets 

Sidewalks 
Bridges 
Computer Equipment 

Total Public Works 

Culture and Recreation 
Salaries 

Payroll Related Benefits and Taxes 
Meterials and Supplies 
Utilities 
Contract Labor 
Profeesional Serices 
ReDairs and !vintenance 
lnsurance 

Office Supplies 
Contract Services 
Service Charges and Fees 
POOI Operations 

Small Tools and Equipment 
Small Computer Equipment 
TeleDhone 
Meetings, Trainings, and Conventions 
Advertisina 
Dues and Subsotiptions 
Small Office Fumishinas and Eauioment 
Gasoline 

Operating Leases 
Farmers Market 
Computer Equipment 
ßuilding 

Land lmprovements 
Rent 

Tota! Culture and Recreation 

Capital Outlay 
Capital Outlay 

Capital Lease 
Payment 

lnterest 
Total Capital Lease 

Tota! Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expendttures 

Other Ftnanctng Sources 
Proceeds from Capital Lease 
Transfers ln 
Transfers Out 

Tota! Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Flet Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Ba!ance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See independent auditors report. 

63,900 88,900 93,685 (4,785) 
49,048 47,548 30,675 16,873 
40,000 40,000 5,191 34,809 

11,500 11,500 6,181 5,319 
52,800 1,360,014 4,410,694 (3,050,680) 

- - 336 (336) 

1,200 1,200 540 660 
5,000 5,000 659 4,341 
5,000 5,000 4,490 510 

200,000 285,000 - 285,000 

- 200,000 - 200,000 
265,000 170,000 - 170,000 
40,000 40,000 - 40,000 

555,000 505,000 - 505,000 

- 8,532 - 8,532 
- 30,000 - 30,000 

5,700 5,700 - 5,700 

3,837,280 5,356,070 6,694,512 (1,338,442) 

339,991 352,926 240,881 112,045 

127,580 128,993 97,116 31,877 
50,000 47,695 44,590 3,105 
34.800 34.800 35.139 (3391 
26,000 22,000 6,792 15,208 

9,575 5,783 5,426 357 
35000 35.000 15053 19947 
15,250 15,250 15,198 52 

17,500 17,500 7,959 9,541 
114,900 107,205 94,123 13,082 

3,000 3,000 - 3,000 
8,500 8,500 5,727 2,773 

8,300 8,300 1,672 6,628 
5,950 5,950 - 5,950 
5.810 5.810 8.520 (2.7101 
8,000 8,000 2,342 5,658 

22.550 22.550 22961 (4111 
2,320 2,320 1,010 1,310 
2.500 2.500 2.819 (319 
1,850 1,850 2,642 (792) 

3,300 3,300 5,249 (1,949) 
13,008 13,008 13,008 - 

850 850 - 850 
- 13,000 - 13,000 

110,000 141,180 - 141,180 
1,500 1,500 253 1,247 

968034 1,008,770 628,480 380,290 

- 1,561,225 2,225,080 (663,855) 

208,155 208,155 189,248 18,907 
- - 18,907 (18,907) 

208,155 208,155 208,155 - 

16,350,006 19,879,110 20,630,877 (751,767) 

55,408 (3,473,696) (2,453,502) 2,593,418 

- - 300,895 (300,895) 
11535,817 11,535,817 21,583,535 (10,047,718) 

(12,153,403) (12,153,403) (14,935,523) 2,782,120 

(617,586) (617,586) 6,948,907 (7,566,493) 

$ (562.178) $ (4.091.282) 4,495,405 $ (4,973,075) 

11,154,707 

$ 15.650,112 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Annexation Area (A3) Sales Tax Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Sales Taxes 
lnterest and Penaities 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
General Government 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

$ 3,196,889 $ 3,196,889 $ 3,795,804 $ 598,915 
55,000 55,000 20,625 (34,375) 

3,251,889 3,251,889 3,816,429 564,540 

36,764 36,764 43,871 (7,107) 
1,226,070 1,262,834 660,585 602,249 

1,262,834 1,299,598 704,456 595,142 

1,989,055 1,952,291 3,111,973 1,159,682 

1sI!X1I!) 

(1 ,500,000) (1,500,000) (1,395, 184) 104,816 

$ 489,055 $ 452,291 1,716,789 $ 1,264,498 

4,843,850 

$ 6,560,639 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
State and Federal Grants Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorablel 
Budciet BudclE Actual (Unfavorableì 

Revenues 
State and Federal Grants 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transters Out 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

$ 2,295,070 $ 2,295,070 $ 5,706,092 $ 3,411,022 

2,295,070 2,295,070 5,706,092 3,411,022 

3,332,632 3,332,632 255,815 3,076,814 

3,332,632 3,332,632 255,818 3,076,814 

(1 ,037,562) (1 ,037,562) 5,450,274 6,487,836 

1,037,562 1,037,562 (5,289,854) (6,327,41 

1 ,037,562 1,037, 562 (5,289,854) (6,327,416) 

$ - $ - 160,420 $ 160,420 

172,353 

$ 332,773 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation 

Note 1. Budgetary lnformation 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected 
in the financial statements: 

a) Prior to September of each year, the City prepares a proposed budget for the next 
succeeding fiscal year and submits it to the Council. The recommended budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the sources of receipts to finance them. 

b) Public hearings are conducted at City Hall. 

c) Prior to the last meeting of the current fiscal year, the budget is enacted through 
passage of an ordinance and becomes the basis for the millage levied by the 
Council. 

d) The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within 
a department; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any 
department must be approved by the Council. Expenditures may not exceed legal 
appropriations at the department level. All appropriations lapse at year end. 

e) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during 
the year for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, 
and Capital Outlay Funds. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for the 
Garden of Pines Permanent Fund and the Tree Mitigation Fund because projects 
are approved individually. 

f) Budgets are legally adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP except for transfers 
and debt service. 

g) The budgetary comparison schedule shown in the accompanying required 
supplementary information presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, 
as amended, with actual results. The originally adopted budget is presented for 
purposes of comparison to the final, amended budget. 

Note 2. Pension Schedules 

Plan Changes in Benefit Terms 
There have been no changes in benefits since the prior valuation of all three pension 
plans. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation 

Note 2. Pension Schedules (Continued) 

Changes of Assumptions 
For Municipal Employees Retirement System for the valuation year ended June 30, 2021, 
the investment rate of return decreased from 6.95% to 6.85%. For Municipai Employees! 
Retirement System for the vaivation year ended June 30, 2020, the investment rate of 
return decreased from 7% to 6.95%. For Municipal Employees Retirement System for 
the valuation year ended June 30, 2019, the investment rate of return decreased from 
7.275% to 7% and the rate of inflation decreased from 2.6% to 2.5%. For the valuation 
year ended June 30, 201 8, the investment rate of return decreased from 7.4% to 7.275% 
and the rate of inflation decreased from 2.775% to 2.6%. For the valuation year ended 
June 30, 201 7, the investment rate of return decreased from 7.5% to 7.4% and the rate of 
inflation decreased from 2.875% to 2.775%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 201 5, 
the investment rate of return decreased from 7.75% to 7.5%, the rate for projected salary 
increases decreased from 5.75% to 5.0%, and the rate of inflation decreased from 3.0% 
to 2.875%. 

For Municipal Police Employees Retirement System for the valuation year ended 
June 30, 2021, the investment rate ofreturn decreased from 6.95% to 6.75%. For Municipal 
Police Employees Retirement System for the valuation year ended June 30, 2020, the 
investment rate of return decreased from 7.125% to 6.95%. For Municipal Police 
Employees Retirement System for the valuation year ended June 30, 2019, the investment 
rate ofreturn decreased from 7.2% to 7.125% andthe inflation rate decreased from 2.6%to 
2.5%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2018, the investment rate of return decreased 
from 7.33% to 7.20% and the inflation rate decreased from 2.70% to 2.60%. For the 
valuation year ended June 30, 201 7, the investment rate of return decreased from 7.5% to 
7.33% andthe inflation rate decreased from 2.875% to 2.70%. Forthe valuation yearended 
June 30, 2015, the inflation rate decreased from 3% to 2.875%. 

For Firefighters Retirement System for the valuation year ended June 30, 2020, the 
investment rate of return decreased from 7.00% to 6.90%. For Firefighters Retirement 
System for the valuation year ended June 30, 2020, the investment rate of return 
decreased from 7.15% to 7.00%. For Firefighters Retirement System for the valuation 
year ended June 30, 2019, the investment rate of return decreased from 7.3% to 7.15% 
and the inflation rate decreased from 2.7% to 2.5%. For the valuation year ended June 
30, 2018, the investment rate of return decreased from 7.40% to 7.30% and the inflation 
rate decreased from 2.775% to 2.70%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2017, the 
investment rate of return decreased from 7.50% to 7.40% and the inflation rate decreased 
from 2.875% to 2.775%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2015, the inflation rate 
decreased from 3% to 2.875%. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Combining Balance Sheet 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 
December31, 2021 

Debt Service Funds Permanent Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds 
General Sales Tax Garden Water Waste-Water 

Obligation Bond of Pines Drug Tree Capacity Capacity Total 
Debt Service Debt Service Permanent Forteiture Mitigation Treatment Treatment Non-Major 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental 

$ 278,221 $ 48,873 $ 35,540 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 362,634 
- - - 34,187 8,611 112,249 523,246 678,293 
- 277,500 24,955 - - - - 302,455 

476,614 - - - - - - 476,614 

$ 754.835 $ 326,373 $ 60,495 $ 34.187 $ 8.611 $ 112.249 $ 523.246 $ 1,819.996 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,736 $ 9,139 $ 10,875 
3,000 - 32,403 - - - - 35,403 

3.000 - 32.403 - - 1.736 9.139 46.278 

- - 24,955 - - - - 24,955 

- - 3,137 - - - - 3,137 
751,835 326,373 - - - - - 1,078,208 

- - - 34,187 - - - 34,187 
- - - - 8,611 - - 8,811 

- - - - - 110,513 514,107 624,620 

751,835 326,373 28,092 34,187 8,611 110,513 514,107 1,773,718 

$ 754.835 $ 326,373 $ 60,495 $ 34,187 $ 8,611 $ 112,249 $ 523,246 $ 1,819,996 

Pssets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Equity in Pooled Cash 
Certificates of Deposit 
Receivables 

Property Taxes 

Total Pssets 

Liabilities and 
Fund Balances 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 

Permanent Fund 
Restricted for: 

Perpetual Care 
Debt Services 
Drug Forfeiture 
Tree Wttigation 

Committed 
Capital Outlay 

Unrestricted 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 



DebtServiceFunds — 
General Saies Tax 

Obligation Bond 
Debt Service Debt Service 

Fund Fund 

$ 557,353 $ - $ 

20 256 

557,373 256 

Permanent Special Revenue Funds Capitai Project Funds 
Garden Water Waste-Water 
of Pines Drug Tree Capacity Capacity 

Permanent Forteiture Mitigation Treatment Treatment 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

  

- $ - $ 
- 3,312 

6 8 

6 3,330  

Total 
Non-Major 

Gove rnme ntal 

$ 557,353 
83,3 

411 

64,075 

CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Charges for Services 
lnterest and Penalties 

Totai Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

General Government 
Debt Service 

Principal 
lnterest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency of 
Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers ln 

Net Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Baiances 

Fund Baiances, Beginning of Year 

Fund Baiances, End of Year  

440 2 - - - - - 46 

472,000 325,000 - - - - - 797,000 
45,75 6,793 - - - - - 5,968 

517,65 331,814 - - - - - 849,429 

39,758 (33,558) - 10 6 13,330 70,00 (208,354) 

- 325,795 - - - - - 325,795 

- 325,795 - - - - - 325,795 

39,758 (5,763) - 0 6 3,330 70,00 7,44 

72,077 332,36 28,092 34,77 8,605 97,83 444,007 ,656,277 

$ 75,835 $ 326,373 $ 28,092 $ 34,87 $ 8,6 $ 0,53 $ 54,07 $ ,773,78 

See ¡ndependent auditors report. 

, 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Fund Descriptions 
Non-Major Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt Service Funds are used to accumuiate monies for the payment of principai, ¡nterest, and 
fiscai charges for the Citys outstanding bonded debt. 

General Obiigation Debt Service Fund - This fund was created to account for the annuai principai 
and interest of the generai obiigation bonded debt. 

Saies Tax Bond Debt Service Fund - This fund was created to account for the annuai principai 
and interest of the sales tax secured debt. 

PERMANENT FUND 

Permanent Funds are used to account for funds that are required to be kept in perpetual trust. 

Garden of Pines Permanent Fund - This fund was created to account for the trust responsible for 
the general maintenance and care ofthe mausoleum. The original deposit must be kept intact. 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Drug Forfeiture Fund - This fund was created in 2017 to account for all expenditures in connection 
with drug forfeiture revenues. 

Tree Mitigation Fund - This fund was created in 2017 to accountfor all expenditures in connection 
with fees collected for tree mitigation. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Water Capacity Treatment Fund - This fund was created in 201 6 to account for all resources and 
expenditures in connection with the Citys water system improvements. 

Waste-Water Capacity Treatment Fund - This fund was created in 2016 to account for all 
resources and expenditures in connection with the Citys wastewater system improvements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Obligation Debt Service Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Property Taxes 
lnterest ancl Penaities 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

General Government 
Debt Service 

Principal 
lnterest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

$ 480,150 $ 480,150 $ 557,353 $ 77,203 
50 50 20 (30) 

480,200 480,200 557,373 77,173 

400 400 440 (40) 

472,000 472,000 472,000 - 
45,175 45,175 45,175 - 

517,575 517,575 517,615 (40) 

7,375 39,758 77,133 

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (37,375) $ (37,375) 39,758 $ 77,133 

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear 712,077 

Fund Balance, End ofYear $ 751,835 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual 1U nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Taxes 

lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

Generai Government 
Debt Service 

Principal 
lnterest 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers ln 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear 

Fund Balance, End of Year  

$ 2,100 $ 2,100 $ 256 $ (1,844) 

2,100 2,100 256 (1,844) 

- - 21 (21) 

325,000 325,000 325,000 - 
6,793 6,793 6,793 - 

331.793 331.793 331.814 (21 

(329,693) (329,693) (331,558) (1,865) 

332,799 332,799 325,795 (7,004) 

$ 3,106 $ 3,106 (5,763) $ (8,869) 

332, 136 

$ 326,373 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Garden of Pines Permanent Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Revenues 
Taxes 

lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

Public Works 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Final Favorable/ 
Budaet Actual (Unfavorableì 

ì ì 

$ 

28,f92 

$ 28,092 

Original 
Budciet 

ì 

$ - $ 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Drug Forfeiture Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Fines and Forteitures 
lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

$ - $ - $ 10 $ 10 

- - 10 10 

- - 10 10 

$ - $ - 10 $ 10 

34,177 

$ 34,187 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Tree Mitigation Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 

Budciet BUdCIE Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 

lnterest ancl Penaities 

Total Revenues 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

$ - $ - $ 6 $ 6 

- - 6 6 

- - 6 6 

$ - $ - 6 $ 6 

8,605 

$ 8,611 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Water Capacity Treatment Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Charges for Services 
lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End ofYear  

$ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 13,312 $ (6,688) 
500 500 18 (482) 

20,500 20,500 13,330 (7,170) 

20,500 20,500 13,330 (7,170) 

$ 20,500 $ 20,500 13,330 $ (7,170) 

97,183 

$ 110,513 

See independent auditors report. 

1 07 



8,500 81,500 70,100 (11,400) 

81,500 81,500 70,100 (11,400) 

$ 81,500 $ 81,500 70,100 $ (11,400) 

444, 007 

$ 514,107 

CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Waste-Water Capacity Treatment Fu nd 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Favorable/ 
Budciet Budaet Actual IU nfavorableì 

Revenues 
Charges for Services 
lnterest and Penalties 

Total Revenues 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End ofYear 

See independent auditors report. 



CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Council Compensation 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Council Members 

Joey Roberts 

Larry Rolling 

Cody Ludwig 

Peter Lewis 

iVark Verret 

John Botsford 

Rick Smith 

Total Council Compensation 

Term of Office 

iVay2018- current 

July 2015 - current 

July 2019 - current 

July 2019 - current 

July2019 - current 

July 2019 - current 

July 2015 - current  

Compensation 

$ 10,800 

10,800 

10,800 

10,800 

10,800 

10,800 

10,800 

$ 75,600 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments 
to Agency Head 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021 

Agency Head 
ark R. Johnson, ayor 

Purpose Aniount 

Salary $90,669 

Benefits - lnsurance $9,035 

Benefits - Retirement $26,747 

Benefits - Other $4,616 

Car Jlowance $9,000 

CeIl Fhone $600 

Other $558 

See independent auditors report. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session - Cash Basis Presentation 
Forthe Six-Month Periods Ended June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021 

Entity Naiue 

LLA Entity H) # (This is the 11) ntuìer assigned to the entity by the Lcgtslative Auditor r 
identifsation puiposes.) 

Date that ieporting peiiod ended (rm/dd/,y) 

(:ash Basis Pi-cseuitatioui 

Bcgiiining Bahincc of Arnounts Collcted (i.e. cas li on htind) 

A(l(1: Collc c tiolis 

Ïraltie 1ieket Fees 
Crinìinal Court Costs/Fees 
Ciiminal Fines - Contetì-pt 

Criminal Fines - Other 

Suhtotai Coflections 

Less: Disbursemeiits To Govcrnincnts & Nonprofits: (Must include one agency name 

and one collection type on each line and may require multiple linesfor the same agency ij 

more than one collection type is applicable. Additionalrows may be adde.das necessary.) 

L4 Commission on Law Enforcement - Court Fees 

¡ndigent Defender Board - Court Fees 

Florida Parishes juvenile Justice Commission - Couri Fees 

Trial Court Case Management Information System - Court Fees 

Louisiana Traurmtic Head and Sprinal Cord ¡njury Trust Fund - Court Fees 

Crimestoppers, Inc - Couri Fees 

St. Tammany Sherrif- Court Fees 

Louisiana Supre,ue Court - Court Fees 

Less: Amount.s Retained by Collecting Agency 
Court Fines 
Pole Report Fees 
CityCourtFee 
NSF Fee 

Subt()tal Disbursements/Retainage 

T()tal: Ending Balance ofAmounts Collected but not DisbursedlRetained (i.e. cash on hantl) 

Ending Balance of Paitial Payments Collected but not Disbursed (only applies ij 
collectingagency does not disbursepartialpayments untilfully collected)- This balance 

is included in the Ending Balance ofAmounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained 

See independent auditors report. 

C ity ofcovnìgton 

2165 

Friilay, Decener 31, 202 1 

First 6 months Second 6 
ended mouiths ended 

06/30/2021 12/31/2021 

44,146 74,428 

44,146 74,428 

386 665 
8,505 14,490 

945 1,605 
567 963 
280 600 
378 642 

1,890 3,180 
85 155 

20,573 36,207 
4,177 5,695 
6,360 10,201 

25 

44,146 74,428 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Statistical Section 
Table of Contents 

This part of the City of Covingtons annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says aboutthe Citys overall financial health. 

Contents Tables 

Financial Trends 1 - 5 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the Citys financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 6 - 10 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Citys 
property tax. 

DebtCapacity 11 -15 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the Citys current levels of outstanding debt and the Citys ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic lnformation 16 - 17 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the Citys financial activities take 
place. 

Operating lnformation 18 - 20 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Citys financial report relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the annual 
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Net Position by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 1 

Fiscal Year 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Governmental Activities 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 
Restricted 
lhìrestricted 

Total Governmental Activities 
Net Position 

Business-Type Activities 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Net Position 

Primary Government 
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets 
Restricied 
Lhìrestìicted 

Total Primary Government 
Net Position 

$ 31,241,825 $ 30,292,215 $ 28,310,163 $ 25,477,548 $ 23,051,733 $ 21,362,467 $ 18,519,019 $ 17,029,735 $ 14,051,675 $ 10,963,044 
1,816,660 1,692,222 1,449,985 1,804,406 1,595,170 1,266,366 5,218,131 5,121,612 5,492,166 5,878,390 
5,506,004 (1,993,150) (2,084,725) (2,506,238) 62,767 385,497 (1,132,977) 4,953,099 4,984,304 2,955,180 

$ 38,564,489 $ 29,991,287 $ 27,675,423 $ 24,775,716 $ 24,709,670 $ 23,014,330 $ 22,604,173 $ 27,104,446 $ 24,528,145 $ 19,796,614 

$ 24,579,024 $ 24,608,548 $ 24,405,436 $ 22,917,753 $ 22,689,820 $ 22,870,664 $ 22,311,124 $ 22,109,454 $ 22,033,851 $ 22,599,871 

3.839.198 3.148.548 2.878,968 3,136,403 3.253.676 2,083,644 1.980.260 2.429.351 1,793.519 1.189.702 

$ 28,418,222 $ 27,757,096 $ 27,284,404 $ 26,054,156 $ 25,943,496 $ 24,954,308 $ 24,291,384 $ 24,538,805 $ 23,827,370 $ 23,789,573 

$ 55,820,849 $ 54,900,763 $ 52,715,599 $ 48,395,301 5 45,741,553 $ 44,233,131 $ 40,830,143 $ 39,139,189 $ 36,085,526 $ 33,562,915 
1,816,660 1,692,222 1,449,985 1,804,406 1,595,170 1,266,366 5,218,131 5,121,612 5,492,166 5,878,390 
9.345.202 1,155,398 794,243 630,165 3,316,443 2.469.141 947,283 7.382.450 6,777,823 4,144,882 

$ 66,982,711 $ 57,748,383 $ 54,959,827 $ 50,829,872 $ 50,653,166 $ 47,968,638 $ 46,895,557 $ 51,643,251 $ 48,355,515 $ 43,586,187 

Source: ComprehenseAmual Financial Reports 
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1.331,387 1,658.114 
60.838 61.740 

101.817 - 
103,255 272,055 

33 51,414 
4.003 24,263 

- 5.262 
13.455 56.451 
5.000 1.000 

1,320,813 1,501.344 
78.493 103,222 
21,807 18.329 

229.464 85431 

4.711 21.128 
25,135 44.875 

- 10.424 
18.410 173.124 
5,750 - 

1.783.302 1.467,832 
75.653 62.823 
83.311 104,446 

142.477 69.535 

4.959,226 
87,004 
87.004 

1,366 

26,468 27.349 17,402 172.124 
105.114 104.647 86.529 

13.724 - 2.293,734 204.253 
28,221 46.059 146,840 168.375 

4.324 51,854 63.850 

2,753 

CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 2 

Flscal Year 
2021 2020 2010 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Expenses 
Gowmmecrtal Actissties 

Geneqal Goimmmeot 
Public Safely - Police 
puDlic Safety - Fire 
Public Worlcs 
Culture and Recreation 
lnterest on Loog-Term Debt 

Total Goimmmeolal Aclivlies Expense 

Business-Type Aclissties 
Water 
Sewer 
Garbage 

TOtaI Business-Type Actndies Eopense 

Total Primaiy Govemment Expessaes 

Program Revenues 
Gowmrneotal Aclissties 

cllarges tor Ser1sces 
General Gowmmenl 
Public Satety - police 
Pubbc Woitrs 
Cullure and Recreetioo 

operating Grants and Contribulios 
General Gowmmeot 
PuDtic Safety - Police 
PuDtic Safety - Fire 
Public Woi1cs 
Cullure and Recrealioo 

CapilaI Granls and Coolributioos 
General Gowmmenl 
Putaic Sefety - Police 
public Safety - Fire 
Public Wodcs 
Crdtree arld Recreelion 

Total Govammental Activltlas Program Revenuea 

Business-Type Aclraties 
Ctcerges tor Sessces 

Weter 
Sewer 
Gerbage 

Tofal Business-Type Actieties Program Reverrues 

Total Prfmary Govemment Program Revenu.s 

$ 3,259.607 S 4.219,e73 $ 4.034.415 $ 3,352.924 $ 4.038,234 $ 4,769.296 $ 4.668,943 $ 3,486.965 $ 3.794,356 $ 4,000.021 
5.041.075 4.534,911 4.773.793 4.663.107 4,563.093 5.006,714 3.882.644 4.040.778 3.886.455 3.946.313 
2,768.922 2.525,136 2.367.913 2.147.667 2.305.524 2,526.229 1.879,036 1.889.585 1.747.521 1,770.518 
8,420.816 3,810,148 3.619,009 3.468.910 3.295,665 3.082.316 2.539.709 2.512.339 2.312.901 2.160,001 

771.273 747,883 844,901 900.389 1.095,418 541.513 458,504 547,055 757,640 803.635 
82.407 78,488 123.555 106,937 123.302 117,453 229,043 246.632 442,827 319.774 

20.344.100 15,916,437 15,763,586 14,639,934 15,421,236 16,043.521 13,657.879 12,723,354 12,841,700 13.020.262 

1.438.531 2.524.833 1,560,160 1.741,357 1.612.340 1.488.619 1.932.925 1,921,567 1.857,583 1.823.929 
2,591.764 2.826,649 2.459.697 2,396,349 2.389,537 2,280.164 1,565,892 1,582,093 1,690,685 1.719.964 
1.010,495 992.160 942.259 822.538 790.005 787.388 684.886 649.894 659.800 727.783 

5,040,790 6.343.642 4,962,116 4,960,245 4,801,882 4,534,171 4,183,703 4,153,554 4,208,068 4,271,676 

25.384.890 22.260.079 20,725.702 19.600,179 20.223.118 20,577.692 17.841,582 16,876.908 17.149,768 17,291.938 

- - 230.992 - - 75.005 25,000 142.207 1,364 20,048 
- 116.884 - - - 44.795 - - 29,877 1,070 
- - 198.096 - 2,130 71,979 - - - 285,532 

500,000 14,000 8,541 3,097 590.078 81.883 472.944 50.853 239.070 7.795 
246.866 - 250.000 - - 2.436 139.791 15,209 - - 

7.790.835 2.010.894 2,307.417 2,133,396 2.296,881 2,234.975 611,262 390.648 2.866,670 925.800 

2.064.623 1.750.857 1,751.694 1.568,834 1.462.483 1.438.457 1.406.118 1.329.090 1.328.553 1.262.419 
2,415.401 2.112,508 1,945,078 1,902,523 1.793,771 1,725.651 1.706,001 1,611.462 1,591,966 1,375.189 
1.028.268 976.460 953.630 884,598 836,508 799.028 774.651 734.984 736.864 683.106 

5.508.292 4.839.825 4.650.402 4.355.956 4.092.762 3.963.136 3.886.770 3,675.536 3.657,383 3.320.714 

13.299.127 6.850.719 6,957.819 6.489,352 6.389.753 6.198.111 4.698.032 4,066.184 6.524,053 4,246.514 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Changes in Net Position (Continued) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 2 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Net )Expense) Revenue 
Goseminentul Açtiidties 
Busiuess-Type Actisities 

Total Primary Goveremeet Net Expense 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position: 
Gosernmentsi Actisities 

Taxes 
Sales Taxes 
Property Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 

Licenses and Permits 
Fines and Foifeitures 
lntemst 
Other Guneral Reranues 
Special lterrr - Loss!Gain on Disposed Assets 
Special hem - Law Ssit Settleruent 
Non-Employar Contnbution Revenue 
Benettt Payments 
Transtsrs 
Capital Contiibutions 

Total Gorammental Actisities 

Business-Type Actisities 
Other General Reranues 
Transfers 
Non-Employer contiibution Resenue 
Beneft Payments 
Capital contnbutions 

TotSl Busirless-Type Actidties 

Total Primary Govemment 

Change tn Net Position 
Gosernmental Actisities 
Business-Type Actisities 

Total Primary Government  

(12,553,265) (13,905,543) (13,456,169) (12,506,538) (13,124,245) (13,808,546) (12,846,617) (12,332,706) (10,075,030) (12,094,462) 
467.502 (1,503,817) (311,714) (604,289) (709,120) (571,035) (296,933) (478,018) (550,685) (950,962) 

(12,085,763) (15,409,360) (13,767,883) (13,110,827) (13,833,365) (14,379,581) (13,143,550) (12,810,724) (10,625,715) (13,045,424) 

16,131,917 13,664,106 12,862,905 12,429,707 11,973,167 10,874,639 10,750,947 10,796,315 10,356,610 10,277,805 
3,288,553 3,184,627 2,979,826 2.866,280 2,852.243 2,774,300 2,638,760 2,619,670 2,496,702 2,433,574 

768,835 672,277 788,684 925,019 763,357 774,406 786,218 775,089 748,346 655,994 
- - - - - - 1,433,599 1,311,592 1,451,406 1,248,790 
- - - - - - 86,020 481.908 90,881 105,856 

69,590 74,683 368,914 197,327 88,099 57,007 32,197 82,585 38408 44,530 
291,241 399,764 581,834 761,177 518.983 805,950 475,066 31.401 212,690 269,047 

- - 8,531 48,042 - (142591) - - - 24,207 
- - - - - - 1,469,800 - - - 

327,562 304,460 279,032 299,191 292,756 280,471 278,908 - - - 
- - - 100,135 - - - - - - 

288,769 (2,118,510) (1,513,850) (2,350,837) (1,669,020) (1,205,479) (1,275,484) (1,189,453) (588,482) (633,824) 
- - - - - - - - - 1,500lO0 

21,166,467 16,181,407 16,355,876 15,176,041 14,819,585 14,218.703 16,676,031 14,909,007 14,806,561 15,925,979 

1,141 - - - - - - - - - 
(288,769) 2.116,735 - - 1,669,020 1,205,479 1,275,484 1,189,453 588,482 633.824 

33,031 31,385 28,112 29,711 29,288 28,480 29,276 - - - 
- - - 16,807 - - - - - - 
- (171.611) 1.513.850 1.300.837 - - - - - - 

4,597) 1,976,509 1,541,962 1.347,355 1,698.308 1,233,959 1,304.760 1,189,453 588,482 633,824 

20,911.870 18.157,916 17,897.838 16.523,396 16.517.893 15,452.662 17.980,791 16,098.460 15.395,043 16,559.803 

9,613,202 2,275,864 2,099,707 2EEtt5h3 1,695,340 410,157 3,829,414 2,576,301 4,731,531 3,831,517 
212,905 472,692 1,230,249 743,066 9h9,196 662,924 1,007,827 711,435 37,797 (317,138) 

$ 9,826,107 $ 2,749,556 $ 4,129,955 $ 3,412,569 $ 2,684,528 $ 1,073,081 $ 4,837,241 $ 3,287,736 $ 4,769,329 $ 3,514,378 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 3 

Fiscal 
Year 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2012 

Sales Tax 

$ 16,131,917 

13,664,106 

12,862,905 

12,429,707 

11,973,167 

10,874,639 

10,750,947 

10,796,315 

10,356,610 

10,277,805 

Property Tax 

$ 3,288,553 

3,184,627 

2,979,826 

2,866,280 

2,852,243 

2,774,300 

2,638,760 

2,619,670 

2,496,702 

2,433,574 

Total 

19,420,470 

16,848,733 

15,842,731 

15,295,987 

14,825,410 

13,648,939 

13,389,707 

13,415,985 

12,853,312 

12,711,379 

Source: Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 4 

Fiscal Year 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

General Fund 

Nonspendable $ 82,260 $ 80,260 $ 87,549 $ 102,447 $ 79,509 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 365 
Restncted 252,529 284,522 254,243 253,254 255,515 253,853 287,655 521,987 253,219 250,540 
Comrnitted - - - - - - 1,209,809 176,089 440,795 2,004,594 

Assigned 5,568,305 4,820,741 4,649,413 3,590,934 6,347,449 5,594,298 2,102,610 2,036,859 1,972,837 2,090,993 
Unassigned 9,747,018 5,969,184 5,782918 7,874,558 4,841,225 3,319,642 5,351,571 4,379,657 3,695,549 1,125,879 

Total General Fund $ 15,650,112 $ 11,154,707 $ 10.774.123 $ 11.821.193 $ 11,523,698 $ 9,167,793 $ 8,951,645 $ 7,114,592 $ 6,362,400 $ 5,472.371 

All Other Governmental 

Funds 
Nonspendabie $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24,955 $ 24.955 
Restncted 1,456,916 1,262,485 1,083,238 1,423,750 1,235,191 1,012,513 4,930,476 4,845,653 5,238,947 5,627,850 

Committed 7,185,259 5,385,040 5,252,822 3,149,972 2,619,805 1,536,553 2,332,731 1,751,713 2,496,138 1,302,560 
Unresered, Repoited in: 

Special Reenue - - - - - 3,757,786 - - - - 

Other - - - - 1245.844 - - - - - 

Total All Other 
Governmental Funds $ 8667,130 $ 6672,480 $ 6361,015 $ 4598,677 $ 5125,795 $ 6331,807 $ 7,288,162 $ 6,622,321 $ 7,760,040 $ 6,955365 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 5 

Fiscal Year 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Revenues 
Saies Tax 
Property Taxes 
Franchise Tax 
Licenses and PeTnits 
Other Revenues 
Fines and Forfeitures 
Charges for Service 
ktergovernmental Revenue 
titerest and Penalties 
Assessments 
State and Federal Grants 
Capital Contributions 
Refundin Bonds lssued 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

General Govemment 
Public Safety - Poliçe 
Publiç Safety- Fire 
Public Works 
Cutture and recreation 
Sewer Department 
Water Department 
Garbage Department 

Capital Outlay 
Capital Outlay- Utility 
Capital Lease 

Pnncipal 
lnterest 

Debt Service 
Prinçipal 
lnterest 
Refunding Bond ksuance Costs 

Payments on Claims and Judgements 
Payment to Escrow Account 

Total Expenditures 

Excess Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

$ 16,131,917 $ 13,664,106 $ 12,862,905 $ 12,429,707 $ 11,973,167 $ 10,874,639 $ 10,750,947 $ 10,796,315 $ 10,356,610 $ 9,211,667 
3,288,553 3,184,627 2,979,826 2,866,280 2,852,243 2774,300 2,638,760 2,619,670 2.496,702 2.433,574 

768,835 672,277 788,664 825,019 763,357 774,406 786,218 775,089 748,346 655,994 
1,585,952 1,450,972 1,315,026 1,658,114 1,320,913 1,501,344 1,433,599 1,311,592 1,451,406 1,248,790 

291,241 212,726 398,369 459,132 251,211 544,009 258,747 288,327 210,698 260,018 
75,653 62,823 60,838 61,740 78,493 103,222 86,020 82,585 90,881 105,856 

225,788 190,841 221.433 272,055 251,371 104,760 131,582 131,996 103,931 172,124 
197350 187,038 183,456 250,160 243,152 247,058 216,097 192,061 175,782 184718 
69,590 99,499 368,914 197,327 88,099 57,007 32,197 31.401 38,408 44,530 

- - - - - - - 1,420 1,992 10,099 
5,706,092 306,258 479,137 142,007 722,116 525,649 654,680 117,652 339,298 480,663 

- - - - - - 25,000 141,000 - 1,500,000 
- - - - - 3,890,000 - - - - 

28.340.971 20.031,167 19,658,588 19,161,541 18,544.122 21,396.394 17.013,847 16,489.108 16,014,054 16.308.033 

3,620,921 3,492,483 
4,791,874 4,085,820 
2.506187 2,113,584 
6,694,512 2170,629 

628,480 605, 145 

3,141,483 3,703,972 

169,248 208,155 
18,907 - 

3,330.355 
4,147,875 

2062,857 
2104,898 

698,334 

5,015,166 

177,608 
30,547 

3.303.834 
4,221 709 

1,988244 
2,006,127 

751,614 
44.327 
18,100 

3,911,767 

3.055,652 
3,979,187 
1,903,993 
2,034,887 

860.503 
18,785 

2967,045 

3.530,055 
4,129,928 
1,916,090 
1,849,987 

301,743 
17,245 
1,463 

178,958 
4,323,372 

3,687,722 
3,708,863 
1,810,928 
1,819,738 

361,491 

2,486,317 

3, 154.400 3,029,758 2,864,072 
3,833,969 3,663,528 3,691,879 
1,791,226 1,653,723 1,675,284 

1,872,988 1,713,165 1,756,179 

329.695 536,379 583,569 

3,829,821 2,206.866 3,129,789 

797,000 774,000 746,000 722,000 693,000 693,673 600,000 575,000 551,000 525,000 

51,968 66,820 81,180 94,974 116,777 139,109 231,739 249,103 266,781 282,220 

- - - 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 137,410 137.410 137,410 
- - - - - 3,825,382 - - - - 

22,440,580 17,220,608 18,394,820 17,092,696 15,749,829 20,946,005 14,736,798 15,773,612 13,758,610 14,645,402 

5.900.391 2.810,559 1,263,768 2,068,845 2.794.293 450.389 2.277,049 715,496 2,255.444 1.662,631 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds (Continued) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 5 

Fiscal Year 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers n 
Transfers Out 
Proceeds from the Saie of Capital Assets 
Proceeds on Debt Issuance 
Debt Serace - principal 
Pament to Refunded Bond EscrowAgent 
Lawsuit Settlemer 
Ptoceeds from Capital Lease 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital 
Expenditures 

Source: Annual Cotnprehensive Financial Repcts  

21,909,330 1,735,063 1,956,664 11,552,430 12,060,133 7,269,605 7,101,607 7,022,566 6,945,422 9,068,749 
(21,620,561) (3,853,573) (3,470,514) (13,903266) (13,729,153) (8,475,084) (8,377,091) (8,212,019) (7,533,904) (9,702,573) 

- - 18,156 52,368 24,620 14,883 31,529.00 88,430 27,742 24,207 

- - - - - - 1.469,800 - - - 
300,895.00 - 947,194 - - - - - - - 

589,664 (2118,510) (548,500) (2,298,468) (1,644,400) (1,190,596) 225,845 (1,101,023) (560,740) (609,617) 

$ 6.490.055 $ 692.049 $ 715.268 $ (229623) $ 1.149893 $ (740.207) $ 2.502.894 $ (365.527) $ 1.694.704 $ 1053.014 

4.40% 622% 6.18% 6.20% 6.33% 5.01% 6.79% 6.90% 7.08% 7.01% 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 6 
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Real Estate 
Assessed 

Value 

$ 141,040,183 

140,264,673 

121 ,388,186 

1 18,824,868 

1 14,948,380 

110,701,663 

103,511,814 

100,278,064 

95,946,008 

93,846,399 

Commercial and 
Other Property 

Assessed 
Value 

$ 23,448,124 

23,809,294 

25, 103,346 

22,972,415 

23,491 ,262 

23,954,850 

23,143,457 

23,606,777 

22, 123,667 

20,591,617  

Total 
Assessed 

Value 

$ 164,488,307 

164,073,967 

146,491 ,532 

141,797,283 

1 38,439,642 

134,656,513 

126,655,271 

123,884,841 

1 18,069,675 

114,438,016 

Total 
Direct 

Tax Rate 

20.01 

20.01 

21.00 

21.00 

21.24 

21.24 

21.50 

21.80 

21.80 

22.00 

Fiscal 
Year 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2012 

Source: lnformation obtained from St. Tammany Parish Assessors Office. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 7 
Property Tax Rates - Direct And Overlapping Governments 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Overlapping Rates 

City of Covington Parish Service District Total 

Debt Total Total Debt Total Direct and 
Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Parish Operating Service School Special Overlapping 
Year Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Districts Rates 

2021 1651 350 2001 3480 3480 45.35 16.65 62.00 0.00 116.81 

2020 16.51 3.50 20.01 35.13 35.13 45.35 16.65 62.00 0.00 117.14 

2019 17.50 3.50 21.00 37.72 37.72 45.62 16.79 62.41 0.00 121.13 

2018 17.50 3.50 21.00 36.69 36.69 45.62 18.79 64.41 0.00 122.10 

2017 17.24 4.00 21.24 36.67 36.67 45.62 19.79 65.41 1.44 124.76 

2016 17.24 4.00 21.24 36.26 36.26 45.62 20.79 66.41 1.44 125.35 

2015 17.50 4.00 21.50 37.47 37.47 47.28 20.9 68.18 1.50 128.65 

2014 17.50 4.30 21.80 35.91 35.91 47.28 20.9 68.18 1.50 127.39 

2013 17.50 4.30 21.80 34.87 34.87 47.28 20.9 68.18 1.50 126.35 

2012 17.50 4.50 22.00 34.87 34.87 47.28 20.9 68.18 1.50 126.55 

Source: St. Tammany Parish Assessors Office 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 8 
Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2012 
Pe rcentage Percentage 

ofTotal ofTotal 
Type of Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Business Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation 

Central LAElectric Co Utility $ 3,243,310 1 22.74% $ 3,058,810 2 25.57% 

Reagan Crossing LLC Apartments 2,820,520 2 19.77% 

Bell South Communications Telecommunications 1,642,234 3 1 1 .52% 

Atmos Energy Corporation Natural Gas 1 ,385,845 4 9.72% 673,048 7 5.63% 

Testiga Properties, LLC Real Estate 1,095,777 5 7.68% 

HancockWhitney Bank#1116 Banking 940,180 6 6.59% 

Capital One NA Banking 936,860 7 6.57% 949,890 4 7.94% 

RobCo LLC Real Estate 747,719 8 5.24% 

Medstate, LLC Software 731,954 9 5.13% 691,669 6 5.78% 

WHS LLC Accounting Firm 719,097 10 5.04% 

AT&T Southeast Tax Dept. 3,067,537 1 25.65% 

Delta Supply Chain Operations 1 ,023,700 3 8.56% 

Forest Manor Corp 593,168 9 4.96% 

Covington Commons, LLC 737,416 5 6.16% 

Testiga Properties, LLC 611,752 8 5.11% 

Rouses Land Co ______________ __________ 554,609 10 4.64% 

Total $ 14,263,496 100.00% $ 11,961,599 100.00% 

Source: St. Tammany Parish Assessors Office 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 9 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Ratio of 

Percent of Collections Total 

Fiscal Total Current Tax Levy for Prior Total Collections to 

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Years Collections Tax Levy (l) 

2021 $ 3,288,553 $ 3,188,893 97.0 $ 1,002 $ 3,189,895 97.0 

2020 3,277,430 3,181,380 97.1 3,247 3,184,627 97.2 

2019 3,075,275 2,978,602 96.9 1,224 2,979,826 96.9 

2018 2,977,749 2,863,883 96.2 2,397 2,866,280 96.3 

2017 2,940,457 2,850,044 96.9 2,199 2,852,243 97.0 

2016 2,860,103 2,766,649 96.7 7,651 2,774,300 97.0 

2015 2,720,372 2,631,109 96.7 7,651 2,638,760 97.0 

2014 2,700,691 2,612,608 96.7 7,062 2,619,670 97.0 

2013 2,573,920 2,488,725 96.7 7,977 2,496,702 97.0 

2012 2,508,839 2,428,858 96.8 4,716 2,433,574 97.0 

Sources: St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office and the City of Covington Finance Departmerit 

(1) Totai coiiections inciude redemptions. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 10 
Principal Sales Tax Payers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Taxpayer 

rvotor Vehicles 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 1 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 2 

lnternet/Retailer 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 3 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 4 

Pharmaceuticai Wholesale 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 5 

Retail Pharmacies and Drug Stores 1 

Retail Computer Software 

Grocery/Discount Retailer 6 

Retail Pharmacies and Drug Stores 2 

Full Service Restaurants 1 

Retail Pharmacies and Drugstores 3 

Totai 

December 31, 2021 
Pe rcentage 

of Total 
Sales Tax Sales Tax 

Collections Rank Collections 

$ 712,470 1 4.24% 

566,279 2 3.37% 

537,713 3 3.20% 

477,220 4 2.84% 

468,818 5 2.79% 

463,777 6 2.76% 

448,654 7 2.67% 

341,111 8 2.03% 

314,226 9 1.87% 

299,103 10 1.78% 

December 31, 2012 
Pe rce ntage 

ofTotal 
Sales Tax Sales Tax 

Collections Rank Collections 

$ 357,413 2 3.88% 

418,210 1 4.54% 

338.068 3 3.67% 

329,778 4 3.58% 

203,578 5 2.21% 

121,594 9 1.32% 

194,366 6 2.11% 

122,515 8 1.33% 

138,175 7 1.50% 

____________ _______ 120,673 10 1.31% 

$ 4,629,376 27.55% $ 2,344,370 25.45% 

Source: Based on Sales Tax Collections, compiled by St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 11 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

(1) (1) 
Percentage 

General Sales Tax Total Primary of Total 
Fiscal Obligation Revenue Community Government Personal Total Debt 
Year Bonds Bonds Disaster Loan Debt lncome Per Capita 

2021 $ 2,425,000 $ - $ - $ 2,425,000 (2) $ 9.06 

2020 2,897,000 325,000 - 3,222,000 (2) 16.85 

2019 3,356,000 640,000 - 3,996,000 (2) 15.34 

2018 3,797,000 945,000 - 4,742,000 (2) 18.28 

2017 4,229,000 1,235,000 - 5,464,000 (2) 21.47 

2016 4,637,000 1,520,000 - 6,157,000 (2) 2430 

2015 4,856,000 1,790,000 - 6,646,000 (2) 2T04 

2014 5,196,000 2,050,000 - 7,246,000 (2) 2990 

2013 5,521,000 2,278,106 - 7,799,106 (2) 32.57 

2012 5,817,925 2,492,458 1,800,900 10,111,283 0.09% 42.40 

Note: Details regarding the Citys outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

(1) Seethe Schedule of Demographic Statistics, Table 16, for personal income and population data. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 12 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 
Year 

2021 

2020 

2019 

2018 

2017 

2016 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2012 

(2) 

Ge neral 
Obligation 

Bonds 

$ 2,425,000 

2,897,000 

3,356,000 

3,797,000 

4,229,000 

4,637,000 

4,856,000 

5,196,000 

5,521,000 

5,817,925 

(3) 
Resources 

Restricted for 
Re payme nt 

of Debt 

$ 712,078 

714,677 

707,122 

715,560 

677,950 

637,097 

632,874 

646,607 

664,689 

698,510 

Net Debt 

$ 1,712,922 

2,182,323 

2,648,878 

3,081,440 

3,551,050 

3,999,903 

4,223,126 

4,549,393 

4,856,31 1 

5,119,415 

$ 

Net Debt 
Per CaDit 

145.16 

188.72 

253.14 

292.25 

351.94 

404.15 

443.93 

511.40 

554.06 

619.33 

(1) 
Perce ntage 
ofNetDebt 
to Estimated 
ìctual Value 

1.04% 

1.33% 

1.81% 

2.17% 

2.57% 

2.97% 

3.33% 

3.67% 

4.11% 

4.47% 

Note: Details regarding the Citys outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Table 6, for 
assessed value data and actual value. 

(2) Amount does not include special assessment, sales tax, or revenue bonds. 

(3) Amount available for repayment of general obligation bonds. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping 
Governmental Activities Debt 
December 31, 2021 
(Unaudited) 

Table 13 

Governmental Unit 

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes 
st. Tammany Parish 
st. Tammany Parish School Board 

Subtotal overiapping Debt 

City of Covington Direct Debt 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Gross Debt 
OutstandinQ ( 

$ 88,325,834 
253,848,167 

Estimated 
Perce ntage 
pplicable (1 

5% 
5% 

100% 

Estimated 
Share of 

Overlapping 
Debt 

$ 4,416,292 
12,692,408 

17,108,700 

3,122,898 

$ 20,231,598 

Source: St. Tammany Parish Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries 
of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping 
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City of Covington. This process 
recognizes that, when considering the governments ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire 
debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does 
not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt of each 
overlapping government. 

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the Parishs taxable assessed 
value that is within the Citys boundaries and dividing it by the Parishs total taxable assessed value. 

(2) Amounts available as of December 31, 2021 for St. Tammany Parish and June 30, 2021 for 
St. Tammany Parish School Board. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 14 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin lnformation 
December31, 2021 
(Unaudited) 

Debt Limit of 
Thirty-Five Legal Debt 

Percent (35%) Less: Total Margin as a 
Fiscal Assessed of Assessed Bonded Legal Debt % of the 
Year Value (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Margin Debt Limit 

2021 $ 164,488,307 $ 57,570,907 $ 1,712,922 $ 55,857,985 97.02% 

2020 164,073,967 57,425,888 2,182,323 55,243,565 96.20% 

2019 146,491,532 51,272,036 2,648,878 48,623,158 94.83% 

2018 141,797,283 49,629,049 3,081,440 46,547,609 93.79% 

2017 138,439,642 48,453,875 3,551 ,050 44,902,825 92.67% 

2016 134,656,513 47,129,780 3,999,903 43,129,877 91.51% 

2015 126,655,271 44,329,345 4,223,126 40,106,219 90.47% 

2014 123,884,841 43,359,694 4,549,393 38,810,301 89.51% 

2013 118,069,675 41,324,386 4,856,311 36,468,075 88.25% 

2012 114,438,016 40,053,306 5,119,415 34,933,891 87.22% 

Sources: 
(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, 

Table 6, for assessed value data. 

(2) Legal debt limit of 35% is established by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 39, Section 562. 

(3) Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 15 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Sales Tax Bonds 

Fiscal Sales Tax Debt Service 

Year Revenue Principal lnterest Total Coverage 

2021 $ 16,131,917 $ 325,000 $ 6,793 $ 331,793 48.62 

2020 13,664,106 315,000 13,376 328,376 41.61 

2019 12,862,905 305,000 19,751 324,751 39.61 

2018 12,429,707 290,000 25,812 315,812 39.36 

2017 11,973,167 285,000 31,768 316,768 37.80 

2016 10,874,639 270,000 37,412 307,412 35.37 

2015 10,750,947 260,000 42,845 302,845 35.50 

2014 10,796,315 250,000 48,070 298,070 36.22 

2013 10,356,610 245,000 53,191 298,191 34.73 

2012 10,277,805 230,000 57,836 287,836 35.71 

Source: Annuai Comprehensive Financiai Reports 

Note: Detaiis regarding the Citys outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic 
financial statements. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 16 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Cityof Cityof 
Covington Covington St. Tammany 

City of St. Tammany Total per Capita Parish 
Covington Parish Personal Personal Unemployment School Median 

Fiscal Population Population lncome lncome Rate Enrollment Pige 
Year () () (1) (1) (3) (4) (2) 

2021 $ 11,800 $ 267,653 * * 5.1% $ 36,820 * 

2020 11,564 191,268 * * 5.7% 37,213 * 

2019 10,464 260,419 * * 2.6% 38,542 * 

2018 10,544 259,414 * * 4.9% 38,549 * 

2017 10,090 254,508 * * 4.3% 38,681 * 

2016 9,897 253,364 516,207,511 52,158 5.1% 38,439 * 

2015 9,513 245,829 539,053,515 56,665 5.7% 38,193 * 

2014 8,896 242,333 489,120,092 54,982 5.1% 38,044 * 

2013 8,765 239,453 436,911,785 49,847 5.2% 37,857 * 

2012 8,266 238,478 389,878,608 47,167 5.2% 37,508 * 

Note: The City of Covington is ocated within st. Tammany Parish. 

* lnformation not available. 

Sources: 
(1) St. Tammany Parish Economic Development Foundation 
(2) Estimates - Louisiana Tech University for the U.S. Bureau of Census 
(3) Louisiana Department of Labor 
(4) St. Tammany Parish School Board - October 1 enrollment 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 17 
Principal Employers 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

2021 
%ofTotal %ofTotal 

St. Tammany St. Tammany 
Parish Parish 

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

st. Tammany Parish Schooi Board 5,823 1 5.18% 4,063 1 3.82% 

St. TammanyHealth System 2,500 2 2.23% 1,324 2 1.25% 

SlidelI Memorial Hospital 994 3 0.88% 1,150 3 1.08% 

St. Tammany Parish Sheriffs Office 691 4 0.62% 715 5 0.67% 

St. Tammany Parish Government 589 5 0.52% 697 6 0.66% 

AVALA Hospital 336 6 0.30% N/A 

cityofslidell 328 7 0.29% 332 10 0.31% 

Gilsbard, LLC 309 8 0.28% N/A 

Marc Jones Construction, LLC 276 9 0.25% N/A 

Christwood RetirementCommunity 215 10 0.19% N/A 

Ochsner Health System 816 4 0.77% 

Textron Systems Merine & Land 619 7 0.58% 

Southeast Louisiana Hospital 558 8 0.52% 

Lakeview Regional Medical Center 498 9 0.47% 

TOTAL - 10 LARGEST EMPLOYERS 12,061 10.74% 10,772 10.13% 

TOTÅ4L - ALL OTHER EMPLOYERS 100,261 89.26% 95,552 89.87% 

TOTÅAL - ALL EMPLOYERS 112,322 100% 106,324 100% 

Note: lnformation listed is for St. Tammany Parish. 

Sources: 
2021 information: Book of Lists 2021-2022, New Orleans City Business 
2012 information: Book of Lists 2012-2012, New Orleans City Business 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 18 
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

December 31, 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

General Government 
Council 8 8 8 6 8 8 8 8 
Administrative(ij 14 20 16 13 12 11 11 10 
Facilities 4 3 1 5 4 * * * 

Permits 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 
Planning 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 
Economic Development - 0 0 0 0 7 9 8 
Engineer 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 
Code Enforcement 2 1 

Public Safety - Police 
Police Employees 44 44 41 46 46 46 44 45 

Public Safety - Fire 
Firefighters 29 21 28 16 16 16 16 16 
Dispatchers - 3 0 5 5 5 5 4 

Public Works 

8 8 
9 9 

2 2 
2 2 
7 7 
1 
1 1 

49 49 

16 16 
4 4 

Public Operations (2) 24 24 24 24 24 24 22 22 22 20 

Public Utility (3) 20 16 22 26 26 26 26 26 26 27 

Recreation and Culture 4 5 4 4 4 1 1 2 4 4 

Total 154 151 148 154 152 151 149 148 151 150 

Source: Adopted 2011- 2020 Budgets City of Covington 

Note: lncludes Elected, Unclassified, and Classified full-time employees. 

(1) lncludes Mayor, Finance Administration, Accounts Payable, Purchasing, and Payroll. 
(2) lncludes Streets, Bridges, Drainage, and General Maintenance. 
(3) lncludes Public Utility Administration, Waste-Water Treatment Plant, Waste-Water Collection, and Water Maintenance. 

* lnformation not available. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 19 
Operating lndicators by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
Function 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Public Safety - Police 
Total Arrests 543 346 462 557 492 647 577 537 552 682 
Parking Tickets 13 39 77 102 91 83 108 194 218 103 
TrafficIolations 915 756 603 383 409 569 860 851 1199 797 

Public Safety - Fire 
NumberofCalls 2250 1956 1909 1746 1758 1639 1703 1528 1355 1444 
Average Response Times 3:57 3:57 3:48 3:48 3:32 3:21 3:05 3:27 3:31 3:36 

Public Works 
Potholes Repaired 42 49 68 71 68 88 83 134 107 300 
TreesCut 134 78 63 76 69 75 75 77 63 125 

publlc Utility 
Water and Sewer 

Numberof8illedAccounts 5476 5407 5347 5329 5278 5175 5076 4940 4719 4648 
NewMeterConnections 1156 53 44 32 112 114 134 152 143 111 

Building Permits 
NewResidential 61 39 42 42 76 128 142 111 156 122 
ResidentialAdditions 19 18 12 23 31 31 11 6 11 7 
Residential Renovations 54 32 25 41 47 160 32 14 17 21 
NewCommercial 6 92 11 13 11 26 12 6 13 7 
Commercial Additions 5 7 2 5 2 4 2 4 - 
Commercial Renovations 36 20 25 32 22 32 26 23 18 18 

Recreation and Culture 
Number of Teams in Softba League 2 2 4 5 
NumberofTeams in Baseball League 3 6 5 8 12 9 12 14 13 13 
NumberofTeams in Basketball League 1 4 5 8 12 15 16 14 20 14 
NumberofTeams in Football League 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 5 

Source: Various City of Cowgton departments. 

Note: hdicators are not available for the general government funotion. 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Table 20 
Capital Assets Statistics by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

14 15 14 12 12 10 8 7 6 6 
66 62 60 37 45 43 47 36 30 30 
26 25 23 20 19 18 16 18 18 14 

3 2 * * * * * * * * 

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 

58 56 51 41 49 47 48 45 48 51 
43 40 39 26 26 26 27 30 28 25 
88 88 88 51 48 49 48 47 36 35 
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

13 14 11 14 15 14 12 12 12 12 
5 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 

87 86 78 34 38 38 35 33 33 30 
1 6 * * * * * * * * 

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

32 35 34 39 38 36 33 36 32 30 
2 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 
1 2 * * * * * * * * 

30 22 * * * * * * * * 

73 73 71 68 73 66 62 55 53 52 

12 13 13 13 14 13 14 15 16 13 

157 154 154 153 150 140 133 124 112 96 
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
4 4 * * * * * * * * 

10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

14 14 14 12 16 16 16 17 17 7 
2 2 * * * * * * * * 

258 250 239 228 213 200 187 163 163 152 

2 2 2 - - - 3 2 4 4 

28 28 28 25 19 16 21 19 21 21 
1 1 * * * * * * * * 

10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Function 

General Government 
Vehicles 
Office Fumiture and Equipment 
Tools and Equipment 

Improvements 
Cemetery 

public Safety - police 
Vehicles 
Office Fumiture and Equipment 
Tools and Equipment 
Stations 

Public Safety - Fire 
Vehicles 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools and Equipment 
lmprovements 
Fire Houses 

Public Works 
Vehicles 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
lmprovements 
lnfrastructure 
Tools and Equipment 

Public Litility 
Water 

Vehicles 
Machinery, Equipment, and 

lm provements 
Water Tower 
lnfrastructure 
Pumping Stations 

Sewer 
Vehicles 
Building 

Machinery, Equipment, and 
lm provements 

Recreation and Cultural Arts 
Vehicles 
Office Furniture and Equipment 
Tools and Equipment 
lmprovements 
Number of Parks 

Source: Various city departments 
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LAPORTE 

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVlSOflS 

LaPorte, APAC 
5100 Village Walk Suite 300 

Covington, LA 70433 
985.892.5850 Fax 985.892.5956 

LaPorte.com 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUÐITING STANÐARÐS 

lndependent Auditors Report 

To the Honorable Mark R. Johnson, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 
City of Covington, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of 
Covington, Louisiana (the City,) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2022. 

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit ofthe financial statements, we considered the Citys internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entitys financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

LOUISIANA • TEXAS 

An Independent1y Owned Member, RSM US Alliance 
RSM US Alliance mernber Srms are separate and independent businesses and legal entities 
that are responsible fortheir own acts and omissions, and each is separate and independent 
from RSM US LLR RSM US LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM lnternational, o global network of 
independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Members ofRSM US Alliance have access to RSM 
lnternational resources through RSM US LLP but are not mewber firms of RSM lnternational. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Citys financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under GovernmentAuditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Towns internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Citys internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
as a public document. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Covington, LA 
October 25, 2022 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

A. Summary of Auditors Results 

Financial Results 

1. Type of auditors report ljpiiíi.ii1 

2. lnternal control over financial reporting 

a) lvlaterial weaknesses identified? No 
b) Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be 

material weaknesses? None reported 
c) Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

li.]s]I11II 

B. Financial Statement Findings 

C. Compliance and Other Matters 
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CITY OF COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Findings - Compliance and Other Matters 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT 

City of Covington, Louisiana 

lndependent Accountants Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

For the Period of January 1, 2021 - July 31, 2021 

To the City Council 
City of Covington, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (CIC) areas 
identified by the Louisiana Legislative Auditors (LLA) Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUPs) in 
accordance with the authority of Act 774 of the 2014 Regular Legislative Session for the 
period from January 1, 2021 through July 31, 2021. City of Covington, Louisianas (the City) 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the AUPs. 

Management of the City of Covington, Louisiana, has agreed to and acknowledged that the 
procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, 
which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified by the LLAs AUPs in 
accordance with the authority of Act 774 of the 2014 Regular Legislative Session for the period 
January 1, 2021 to July 31, 2021. Additionally, the LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that 
the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for 
any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all items of interest to a user of 
this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated results are as follows: 

Payroll and Personnel (follow-up) 

Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/ 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

LOUISIANA • TEXAS 

An Independent1y Owned Member, RSM US Alliance 
RSM US Alliance mernber Srms are separate and independent businesses and legal entities 
that are responsible fortheir own acts and omissions, and each is separate and independent 
from RSM US LLR RSM US LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM lnternational, o global network of 
independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Members ofRSM US Alliance have access to RSM 
lnternational resources through RSM US LLP but are not mewber firms of RSM lnternational. 
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2. Randomiy select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials 
selected under #1 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to 
earn leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected 
official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official should document 
his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/ 
officials. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entitys 
cumulative leave records. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

Sexual Harassment (follow-up) 

1. Obtain and inspect the entitys written sexual harassment policies and procedures and 
observe that they address all requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S.) 42:342-344, 
including agency responsibilities and prohibitions; annual employee training; and annual 
reporting requirements. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

2. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials/board members employed during the fiscal 
period and managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
employees/elected officials/board members, obtai n sexual harassment trai ning documentation 
from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/elected 
official/board member completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the 
calendar year. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

3. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

4. Obtain the entitys annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that 
the report was dated on or before February 1st,  and observe that it includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 
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Written Policies and Procedures 

Obtain and ¡nspect the entitys written policies and procedures and observe that they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entitys 
operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) ReceiptslCollections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include managements actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

e) PayrolllPersonnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, ¡ncluding leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
employees rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), ¡ncluding (1) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers ofstatements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

h) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i) Ethics, ¡ncluding (1) the prohibitions as defined ¡n Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken ¡f an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entitys 
ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, ¡ncluding (1) debt ¡ssuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

k) lnformation Technology Disaster RecoverylBusiness Continuity, ¡ncluding (1) 
¡dentification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location ¡solated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use ofantivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 
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Capital Assets 

1. Obtain and ¡nspect the entitys written policies and procedures over capital assets and observe 
that they address the process for tagging assets, performing an annual ¡nventory, and 
disposing of assets. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

2. Obtain documentation from management for the most recent capital asset ¡nventory count ¡n 
which all assets were inventoried. Observe that the ¡nventory count was performed no more 
than one year ago. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

3. Obtain a listing of capital assets and obtain managements representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly select 25 assets from the listing, physically locate each asset, and 
observe that each asset is tagged and agrees to the information on the listing as to the 
location, description, manufacturer, model, and serial number. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

4. Select 1 O capital assets in two physical locations (if entity has at least two physical locations) 
that meet the asset capitalization threshold (e.g., vehicles, office furniture, lawn mowers). 
Observe that each asset ¡s tagged and trace to the listing from #3 above. Observe that each 
asset ¡s included on the listing and agree the ¡nformation on the listing to the location, 
description, manufacturer, model, and serial number of the asset. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 

Fraud Notice 

Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing ¡s complete. Select all misappropriations on 
the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the Legislative Auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the entity ¡s domiciled. 

Results: No misappropriations during the fiscal period. No exceptions noted. 

2. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Results: No exceptions noted. 



We were engaged by City of Covington, Louisiana, to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination 
or review engagement, the objective ofwhich would be the expression ofan opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on those C/C areas identified by the LLA AUPs. Accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the City of Covington, Louisiana, and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-
upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified by the LLA, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Covington, LA 
October31, 2022 


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155

